UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141038 Date: 12/17/2012

RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Guarin, Marc F

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 5:00 PM

To: Sullivan, David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley,
Jacobson, Linda; Eichensehr, Kristen E

Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

Attachmenis: Gaza doc rev [CONSOLIDATED].docx

Thanks for your patience... the attached version is both consolidated and cleaned up aesthetically (set the tra
view to “final” vice “final showing markup” if you want to see what it looks like clean), so I'd say it's pretty clg

f
i
i

Steph%an G;

cl ch‘énges
se to beipg

ready for prime time. |

|

Marc

From: Guarin, Marc F
Sent: Wednesday, 2 June, 2010 16:31

Teo: Sullivan, David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Lir

Subject: RE: Blockade email—-draft

All-

It looks like there are now two versions floating around {one that JoAnn and David edited, and one that Linda
edited). To minimize confusion, 'm going to run a mail merge and then recirculate the combined version. Bl
make any additional mods until 've had a chance to consolidate. J

Marc ’

VFrnm: Sullivan, David J
Sent: Wednesday, 2 June, 2010 16:28

Te: Baumert, Kevin A; Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, tinda

Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

RNV RN ——

and{

%ase r%ion‘t

From: Baumert, Kevin A
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:09 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda; Sullivan, David[J

Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft |

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. CU5141038 Date: 12/1//2012

From: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:59 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda; Sullivan, David J

Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

I have added a few questions and comments.

Fromt: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:41 PM
Ta: Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Sullivan, David
Subject: FW: Blockade email--draft

fust a few non-substantive edits. Dave may have additional ones... This looks quite useful and concise.

Fromt: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:05 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

Please work from this draft, which implements Stephen T's comments. | will be out until at least 6, so Stephjn/Ma{rc will

be running the doc. Thanks, Steve

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:01 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobseon, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

e a .

Just a quick plug to please send comments as soon as you can, as we'd like to ship this out to HHK too before launghing.
)

Thanks, Stephen

o f—— ——

Frami: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 12:50 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: Blockade email--draft

Folks—Here is a very rough draft email with some hlank spots that is intended to help answer 7" floor quest

ons on

blockade issues. | unfortunately have to duck into something else but maybe Marc or Stephen could consolidate

comments before this goes to Jim, Joan, and HK? |

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141038 Date: 12/17/2012
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UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141050 Date: 12/17/2012

RELEASED IN PART BS5

Law, Rosemary C

From: Guarin, Marc F

Sent; Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:57 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn;
Sullivan, David J ,

Subject: RE: Blockade email--drait

Aitachments: (Gaza doc rev.dock

Sorry, have been in a Kazakhstan meeting all afterncon and just got to look this over. My edits are attached.

Marc

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Wednesday, 2 June, 2010 15:41
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Sullivan, David|)
Subject: FW: Blockade email--draft

lust a few non-substantive edits. Dave may have additional ones... This looks quite useful and concise.

From: Pomper, Stephen E
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:05 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: RE: Blockade email--draft

Please work from this draft, which implements Stephen T's commenits. | will be out untii at least b, so Stephegn/Marc will
be running the doc. Thanks, Steve

— v - =

Fromi: Townley, Stephen G
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:01 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: RE; Blockade email--draft

Just a quick ptug to please send comments as soon as you can, as we'd like to ship this out to HHK too beforg launching.
Thanks, Stephen

From: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 12:50 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Subject: Blockade email--draft

Folks—Here is a very rough draft email with some blank spots that is intended to help answer 7" floor questions dn
blockade issues. | unfortunately have to duck into something else but maybe Marc or Stephen could consolidate

comments before this goes to lim, Joan, and HK?| 7 _ ] ] B5

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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. UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141057 Date: 12/17/2012

[RELEASED IN PART BS|

i Law, Rosemary C

From: Gutherie, Peter A

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:31 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Mortlock, David JL

Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: IHH PRESS GUIDANCE

Fram: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 2:35 PM

Te: Dolan, JoAnn; Gutherie, Peter A; Mortiock, David JL

€c: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: IHH PRESS GUIDANCE

Frem: Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 2:21 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda

Ce: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: FW: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: IHH PRESS GUIDANCE

Should have included you both.

Frem: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2610 2:19 PM
To: Gutherie, Peter A; Shore, Rhonda H; P-NEA Duty; Rana, Gautam A; Hatcher, ] Nathaniel; Reasor, Lonni H; Vasquez,
Edgar J); Cohen, Jared A
Ce: Mortlock, David L
Subject: RE: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: THH PRESS GUIDANCE |

From: Gutherie, Peter A -
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 12:37 PM
To: Shore, Rhonda H; P-NEA Duty; Rana, Gautam A; Hatcher, ] Nathaniel; Reasor, Lonni H; Vasquez, Edgar JJ; Cotien,
Jared A

Ce: Mortlock, David JL; Dolan, JoAnn

Subject: RE: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: IHH PRESS GUIDANCE

Edits attached. The questions are fairly similar, so | also think they (and the bullets) could be combined intoone 4 & A.

Copying David Mortlock on| |

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewel]

J
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! UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Uepartment or State Lase NO. F-Z0TU-047103 LIOC NO. LUD14TuUa/ Date: 121 /120712

Fram: Shore, Rhonda H

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 11:41 AM .
To: P-NEA Duty; Rana, Gautam A; Hatcher, ) Nathaniel; Gutherie, Peter A; Reasor, Lonni H; Vasquez, Edgar J; Cohen,
Jared A ‘
Subject: CLEAR THIS VERSION ASAP: IHH PRESS GUIDANCE

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141057 Date: 12/17/2012
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C09141104 Date: 12/17/2012

[RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Harris, Robert K

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 4:00 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Linda;| Gorole,
Katherine M; Banos, Mariano H; Cleveland, Sarah H; Pomper, Stephen E '

Subject: FW: Israel -Flotilla and beyond ;

Imporiance: High :

| was a blind cc on this.

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2010 12:05 PM
To: 'Power, Samantha J.'; Feltman, leffrey D
Cc: 'Busbhy, Scott W.'; Graze, Deborah E; Koh, Harold Hongju ,
Subject: FW: Israel -Flotilla and beyond :
Importance: High

Samantha and Jeff . o

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141104 Date: 12/17/2012
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141423 Date: 12/17/2012

IRELEASED IN PART B5)

Law, Rosemary C

From: Heinemann, Thomas B
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 1:19 PM
Te: Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Conklin, Maegan L; Guarin, Marc F C :
Subject: HE:I P_ analysis on international law governing blockadps B5
, I
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED |
1

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

R — - |-

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 12:44 PM
Te: Heinemann, Thomas B; Jacobson, Linda; Conklin, Maegan L; Guarin, Marc F Do ;
Subject: RE: | L analysis on international law governing blockades x B5

B5

From: Heinemann, Thomas B :
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 12:21 PM !
To: Jacobson, Linda; Conklin, Maegan L; Perina, Alexandra H; Guarin, Marc F ,
Subject:i EL analysis on international law governing blockades :

o
[#) ]

Thanks.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] |
1
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141423 Date: 12/17/2012
P

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

3 B
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141440 Date: 12/17/2012

Law, Flosemary C [RELEASED IN PART B5|
)

From: Heinemann, Thomas B

Sent: Tuesday, September 06, 2011 12:29 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Kimball, Emily J; Gorove, Katherine M

Ce: Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F; Biniaz, Susan N; Mcleod, Mary; Visek, Richg
Subject: RE: Turkey ICJ

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

ard C..

A couple of additional thoughts on these points:

-~ Also, in case anyone missed it, the report is now officially up on the UN website
Sorry for the delayed response, I was offline over the weekend.

————— Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Saturday, September 63, 2011 5:28 PM

To: Heinemann, Thomas B; Kimball, Emily J; Gorove, Katherine M

Cc: Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F; Biniaz, Susan N; Mcleod, Mary; Visek, Richard
Subject: Re: Turkey IC] :

Reading through the report, the following concerned me:

c

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
F

_ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141440 Date: 1211712012
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141440 Date: 12/17/2012 i!

B5
Jon
————— Original Message ----- ?
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Saturday, September €3, 2011 @3:47 PM
To: Heinemann, Thomas B; Kimball, Emily J; Gorove, Katherine M :
Cc: Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F; Biniaz, Susan N; Mcleod, Mary; Visek, Richard C
Subject: Turkey IC3]
Tom/Emily/Kate - are any of you in a position to get me some thoughts on the Turkish
announcement they will take the blockade issue to the ICJ (before I leave Monday moriningy? | I
Thanks | 1
Jon
This email is UNCLASSIFIED _ l

5 :
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141463 Date: 12/17/2012
[RELEASED IN PART BS)

Law, Rosemary C

From: Heinemann, Thomas B

Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 5:36 PM

Te: Gorove, Katherine M; Pomper, Stephen E; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B

Ce: Martin, Julie B; Buchwald, Todd F; Daley, John D; Pering, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariand H
Subject: RE: urgent - flotilla - D question

i can‘t tell from this if there is a question we are supposed to be answering. Can someone clarify?

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 4:18 PM ;
To: Gorove, Katherine M; Pomper, Stephen E; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas §
€c; Martin, Julie B; Buchwald, Todd F; Daley, John D; Perina, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariano H
Subject: RE: urgent - flotilla - D question

Looping in Tom in Steve’s absence.

From: Gorove, Katherine M 1
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 4:16 PM 3
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B ;
Cc: Martin, Julie B; Buchwald, Todd F; Daley, John D; Perina, Alexandra H :
Subject: urgent - flotilla - D question

|But, see below from Hanold. |

From: Daley, John D i
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 3:55 PM

To: Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Gorove, Katherine M; Martin, Julie B; Buchwald, Tadd F
Subject: URGENT--SEE BELOW :

i SENUS W
From Koh Harold Hongju

Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 3:42 PM

Teo: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Buchwald, Todd F

Ce: Daley, John D; Townley, Stephen G; Zelinsky, Aaron
Subject: Turkey Flotilla ICC guidance

The Legal Adviser [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
United States Department of State

Harold Hongju Koh l

6
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H
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2201 C 5t. N.W. Suite 6421 |
Washington, D.C. 20520
202-647-9598 phone ‘ I
202-262-8295 cell ;
202-647- 7096 fax |
|
I
|

~J
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141500 Date: 12/17/2012

[RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Bosemary C

|
%
|
|

From: Heinemann, Thomas B
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2011 12:14 PM
To: Heinemann, Thomas B

Subject: FW: Questions from the morning meeting regarding the biockade

From: Donoghue, Joan E
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 9:53 PM
To: Sullivan, Jacob )

Ce: Thessin, James H; Townley, Stephen G; Pomper, Stephen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Schwartz, Jonathan B;

Linda; Guarin, Marc F; Koh, Harold Hongju

Subject: Questions from the morning meeting regarding the blockade

Dear Jake-~

|
|

L

t

|
|
|

acobson,]

|
|
|

I

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer| _
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, C05141500 Date: 12/17/2012
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. CU2141500 Date: 12/17/2012

‘Bs

|

I hope you find this helpful. Please let us know if you have any questions.

Regards,

Joan

|
7

|
4 -
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141535 Date: 12/17/2012

[RELEASED IN PART BS|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Holmstrom, Todd C

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:58 PM

To: Sayles, Ambrose G ‘

Ces Hale, David M; Rudman, Mara; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobsan, Linda; Goldberger, Thpmgls
i

H; Ratney, Michael A; Vasquez, Edgar J; Pelton, Erin; Waller, Robert P; Rand, Dafna H;
Rana, Gautam A; Knopf, Payton L, Prince, Jonathan

Subjeci: FW:

Attachments: 0531 10-israel-Palestinians - Raid on Free Gaza Flotilla.docx
Importance: High

Couple edits, E

From: Sayles, Ambrose G ‘
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:39 PM
To: Hale, David M; Rudman, Mara; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstmﬁn, Todd G;
Ratney, Michael A; Vasquez, Edgar J; Pelton, Erin; Bernier-Toth, Michelle; Wills, Regina M; Lieberman, Jessica D {DRL);
Katsoulos, Athena; Waller, Robert P; Fuchs, Michael H; Rand, Dafna H; Rana, Gautam A; Harutunian, Ruben; [Reynglds,
Arlissa M; Knopf, Payton L; Prince, Jonathan M Z
Subject:

Importance: High

Hi Everyone —

Please clear the attached press guidance on the raid on the Free Gaza flotilla. Please note that your clearance is
appreciated ASAP. We will need to move this guidance to PA soonest so that it can be used by all that need jt.

Thank you,
Ambrose

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] ;
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141538 Date: 1

RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

211712012

From: Ingber, Rebecca M
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 2:45 PM
To: Banos, Mariano H; S|m0noﬂ Mark A (USUN) Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary; Perin

Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Buchwald, Todd F; Baumert, Kevin A; Aswad, H
Gorove, Katherine M

Ce: Jacobson, Linda; Schwariz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission reporn
Attachments: RE: AP -- Turks accuse Israel of war crimes at int'l court

3,
velyn M;

Frem: Banos, Mariano H
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 2:42 PM

To: Simonoff, Mark A {USUN); Ingber, Rebecca M; Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary; Perina, Alexandra H; Pompet,

E; Buchwald, Todd F; Baumert, Kevin A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Gorove, Katherine M
€c: Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 2:37 PM

To: Ingber, Rebecca M; Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary; Banos, Mariano H; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Steph
Buchwald, Todd F; Baumert, Keva Aswad, Evelyn M; Gorove, Katherine M

Cc: Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report

Colleagues,

My coleagues in the Political Section responded to Rebecca’s suggested revision and the explanation as follg

WS i

|

| |From Amb Rice's Aug 2, 2010 statement:

The United States expects that the Pane! will operate in a transparent and credible manner and that
will be the primary method for the international community to review the incident, obviating the n
overlapping international inguiries.

Best regards,

Mark [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

Mark A, Simonoff
Acting Legal Adviser

ts wafrk '
eed for ahy
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141538 Date: 12/17/2012

U.5. Mission to the United Nations
799 United Nations Plaza

New York, NY 10017
(212)415-4220

SBU
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Ingber, Rebecca M
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 2:09 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary; Banos, Mariano H; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN);

Buchwaid, Todd F; Baumert, Kevin A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Gorove, Katherine M
Cc: Jacobson, Linda; Schwattz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report

| just spoke with JoAnn and unless there are concerns with this, | will send back to NEA in the next 10 min.

Thanks!

Fraem: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 1:45 PM

To: McLeod, Mary; Ingber, Rebecca M; Banos, Mariano H; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Simonoff, Marl{ A

(USUN); Buchwald, Todd F; Baumert, Kevin A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Gorove, Katherine M
Cc: Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report

Mariano thought NEA guidance looked fine and Alexandra and Rebecca are going over it now. Did anyone else waiit tc
weigh in before we get back to NEA? | thought L/UNA in particular might because of references to 5YG investigatidgn,
have also attached version with point added by DRL, which | am not sure Mariano had yet seen. Would L/FO normally

want to clear as well?

|

From: Dolan, JoAnn .

Sent: Monday, Yanuary 24, 2011 1:14 PM
Teo: Ingber, Rebecca M; Banos, Mariano H; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN);
Buchwald, Todd F; Baumert, Kevin A; Aswad, Evelyn M

€c: McLeod, Mary; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B
Subject: FW: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report

In case others have not seen as yet.

T

E“r'om:- Ventrell, Patrick H {USUN)
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 1:03 PM

To: Vasquez, Edgar J; Schrepel, Dawn M; P-NEA Duty; Rand, Dafna H; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Kornblau, Mark

(USUN); Bass, Warren; Cooper, Kurtis A; Lapenn, Jessica; Owen, Evan, PRM-Press-DL; EUR-Press; Sachar, A!Jn
(NEA/IPAY; Hale, David M .
2

i
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141538 Date; 12/17/2012
€c: Doutrich, Jack T

Subject: RE: For Clearance: 1srael-Turkel Commission report '

Attached are the suggested edits from USUN.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Vasquez, Edgar ] '
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2011 12;15 PM P
Ta: Schrepel, Dawn M; P-NEA Duty; Rand, Dafna H; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn; Komblau, Mark (USUN); Bass,
Warren; Cooper, Kurtis A; Lapenn, Jessica; Ventrell, Patrick H (USUN); Owen, Evan; PRM-Press-DL; EUR-Press; SaChar,
Alon (NEA/IPA); Hale, David M '
Cc: Doutrich, Jack T :
Subject: For Clearance: Israel-Turkel Commission report : |
Importance: High i i

Please clear on the attached press guidance.

Thanks,
Eddie

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. i
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141560 Date: 12/17/2012

[RELEASED IN PART B§|

Law, Rosemary C

;

From: Johnson, Clifton M

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 12:10 PM

To: Mitchell, Mary T; Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Linda; Sharpe, Jeremy
Ce: McDonough, Patricia E

Subject: RE: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

Adding Trish, who's following this issue for LEI. Cliff

From: Mitchell, Mary T

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 12:04 PM

To: Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Linda; Johnson, Clifton M; Sharpe, Jeremy
Subject: RE: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

L

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 12:02 PM

Ta: Jacobson, Linda; Johnson, Clifton M; Mitchell, Mary T; Sharpe, Jeremy
Subjeet: FW: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

From: Mitchell, Mary T
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 10:00 AM

1
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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To: Jacohson, Linda; Sharpe, Jeremy
Cc: Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

BY

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 9:42 AM

To: Mitchell, Mary T; Jacobson, Linda; Ramish, Timothy E; Prosser, Sarah E; Joyce, Anne

Cc: Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Thessin, James H; McLeod, Mary (USUN); Buchwald, Todd F
Subject: FW: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

All, attached is an options paper we (by that | mean Lindal} prepared at Jake Sullivan’s request on possible

aal

ays t;) ]

|Do any of you have other ideas we could add? We have

this outside of L yet. Thanks, Stephen

not shard

From: Townley, Stephen G

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:10 AM

To: Sullivan, Jacob ]

Ce: Danoghue, Joan E; Eichensehr, Kristen E; Cleveland, Sarah H; Thessin, James H; Jacobson, Linda; Schwa
Jonathan B; Harris, Robert K

Subject: Options Paper on Flotilla Investigation

.

rtz,

1
|

P

Jake, Attached please find the latest draft of our paper on

|
_,_' hanks, Stephen

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141560 Date: 12/17/201
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141569 Date; 1

RELEASED IN PART
B6,1.4(B),B1,B5,1.4(D)

Law, Rosemary C

21 7/201?

Johnson, Thomas A
Friday, June 11, 2010 2:25 PM

From:
Sent:

To:
Nerissa J; Frelich, Karlene H; Huskey, James L; Connor, Julie G; Jacobson, Linds

JoAnn
uscg.mil’; Whittlesey, John K; Graves, Jackie M
Re: IMO Council--Probable Solution for Israel-Turkey Dispute

Ce:
Subject:

The deal described below held together in its entirety. There were no changes fo the textis below. After review,
summary of decisions on all agenda items, the Council ended its 104th session without further incident.

The Turkish ambassador was nowhere to be seen on Friday. By the end of last meeting, the Turkish delegatig
to its normal size of one of two---from an earlier high of eight. The Israeli Embassy and Del expressed profuse
USDEL assistance.

O'Brien, Gregory J (OES}; Baumert, Kevin A; Morrison, Andrew L; Anderson, Gerald C; ICoo!k,

: Dolan, -

IB6

|
|

ngthe |
|

n wags dovn
> thanks for

To: O'Brien, Gregory J {(OES); Baumert, Kevin A; Morrison, Andrew L; Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa J; F
Karlene H; Huskey, James L; Connor, Julie G; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: @uscg.mil < [Ruscg.mil>; Whittlesey, John K; Graves, Jackie M B6
Sent: Thu Jun 10 12:51:32 2010

Subject: RE: IMO Council--Probable Solution for Israel-Turkey Dispute

USDEL believes that issues mentioned below have been resolved, if the current deal holds.

From: Johnson, Thomas A L

elich,

it

is reflected in the text below for an insert in the Record of Decisions {there is no Council r,epgi')rt

per se).

|

[IEV]EW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed

Insert in Record of Decisions:

“In a subsequent discussion of the 31 May 2010 incident, at the instigation of the

|

delegation of Turkey, the Council unanimously reiterated its expression of deep regret for tHe

loss of life and injuries suffered in the incident and its condolences to the families an
of the reported casualties. The Council noted that the Secretary-General would issue
release encapsulating the essence of its debate on the issue.”

d friends

a press

Classified by DAS, A/GIS, DoS on : 08/02/2012 ~ Class: CONFIDENTIAL ~ Reason: 1.4(B), 1.4(D),
Declassify on: 06/11/2020 3
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Press Release:

“The Secretary-General of the IMO—the UN specialized agency responsibfe for the
regulation of international shipping from, among other perspectives, the safety of hufran'life
at sea and safety of navigation—deeply regrets the loss of life and injuries sustained duriﬂtg a
incident involving Israeli Defense Forces and ships carrying charity aid to the Gaza Strip in’
international waters of the Eastern Mediterranean in the early hours of Monday, 31 May :
2010. In this context, he has conveyed his deep condolences to the families and friends of the
casualties incurred in the tragic incident.” ;

o3

From O Brien Gregory J (OES)

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 11;13 AM
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Morrison, Andrew L; Johnson, Thomas A; Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa 1; Frelich, Karlgne H;
Huskey, James L; Cennor, Julie G; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn ; BE

Subject: RE: IMO Council--Draft Press release on Israel-Turkey Incident

B5

v/r Greg

|
From Baumert Kevin A ’
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 10:39 AM
To: O'Brien, Gregory J (OES); Morrison, Andrew t; Johnson, Thomas A; Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa J Frehc h, *
Karlene H; Huskey, James L; Connor, Julie G; Jacobson Linda; Dolan, JoAnn co
Ce: ~ l@uscg.mil' | . B6
Subject: RE: IMO Council--Draft Press release on Israel-Turkey Incident 1 1
i

B5

Thanks,
Kevin
L/OES

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141569 Date: 12/17/2012 o
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From: O'Brien, Gregory J (OES)
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 9:22 AM

To: Morrison, Andrew L; Johnson, Thomas A; Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa J; Frelich, Karlene H; Baumert, Ke,‘vm a;

Huskey, James L; Connar, Julie G

- - - fm e o iy ey ma— me s am s e m e == —ms - -

ca[___ @uscg.mil . | BB
Subject: RE: IMG Council--Draft Press release on Istael-Turkey Incident
v/r Greg ;
Frbm: Morrison, Andrew L 1
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 8:42 PM | B6
Fo: Johnson, Thomas A; Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa J; Frelich, Karlene H; O'Brien, Gregory J (OES); Baumetft,
Kevin A; Huskey, James L; Connor, Julie G
Cal — f@uscg.mil ;
Subject: RE: IMO Council--Draft Press release on Israel-Turkey Incident f
1 i 1
B5

SBU ' .
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
From: Johnson, Thomas A T
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 B:23 PM
Te: Anderson, Gerald C; Cook, Nerissa J; Morrison, Andrew L; Frelich, Karlene H; O'Brien, Gregory J (OES); Baumett;
Kevin A; Huskey, James L; Connor, Julie G i Bs
Ce: T f@uscg.mil :
Subject: IMO Council--Draft Press release on Israel-Turkey Incident

B5
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o '

[RELEASED IN PART B6|

Law, Rosemary C

From: I I : B&
Sent; Tuesday, June 01, 2010 10:57 PM ‘
To: Jacobson, Linda .
Subject: Fwd: Open Letter: People of Conscience Condemn Israeli Massacre and Call To Sustained
Action :

Any possibility the State Department can
express concern for the safety of Archbishop Hilarion Cappucci of Jerusalem. I met the archbishop in the Home
of my good friend Shafic Budron. I would really appreciate any actions u could take to express concegn for the

Archbishop's safety. ‘

The information transmitted in this e-mail message and attachments, if any, may be attorney-client i ormatio n,
including privileged and confidential matter, and is intended only for the use of the individual or ent‘l:ﬁ/ named
above. Distribution to, or review by, unauthorized persons is prohibited. All personal messages express views
solely of the sender, which are not to be attributed 10| , 1f'vou hhve
received this transmission in error, immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this transmissiod
including attachments, if any, '

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D." <SMBudron@AGSustainableSolutions.com:
Date: June 1, 2010 9:50:16 PM CDT

To: {
Subject: Open Letter: People of Conscience Condemn Israeli Massacre and Call To |
Sustained Action .
Reply-To: <SMBudron@AGSustainableSolutions.com>

I hope all is well with you.

On Board of the “Gaza Freedom Flotilla™ which was attacked by Israeli forces in internationgl
waters, was my dear and special friend/ father figure “Peace Dove” Archbishop Hilarion ,

1
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Cappucci of Jerusalem. The Archbishop is near 90 years old and in frail health. You met the
Archbishop in our home last year when we had him on a U.S. speaking tour which spanned
Washington, Chicago, Los Angeles and New York. He is a consummate humanitarian, and last
June at ADC while seated next to President Bill Clinton, we bestowed on him “The
Humanitarian Achievement Award™. | am personally and especially concerned about his well
being, and 1 have been reaching out to officials within our government to ensure his safety,
healthcare and immediate release from his detention/ unprisonment by 1srael.

&

Let’s reach out to our friends and contacts within the U.S. government to ensure that 1srael he
receives decent and dignified treatment, proper healthcare and also ensure his immediate release.
I would appreciate your help.

p.s. The Archbishop was the only person who was allowed to conduct religious services for the
American hostages who were held in Tehran in 1979, and later was the individual who escorted
the hostages with the International Red Cross from Tehran to Geneva, where they were handed
to the U.S. governmenlt. Shortly thereafter, President Jimmy Carter sent Archbishop Cappucci a
special thank you letter, in which President Carter told him that “America is indebted to you™ |

Warm regards,

EEEE S S EE R E LR TR SRS RS ES SRS SR L]

= | | o

Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D.
President & CEO
WasteTech*AltEnergy*Technology & Processes*Construction & Development®*Design-Build *MO&:M )

Burr Ridge, IL 60527 :
Cell (847) 4859-7999 * Fax (630) 794-9329 * www.AGSustainableSolutions,.com :

NOTICE: This communication {inciuding alf attachments) is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to whom it is addressed and
should be treated as a confidential Allied Group communication that may be legalty privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you

must not review, retransmit, print, convert to hard copy, copy, disseminate, or use this email or its attachments. if you have received this
emai} in error, please immediately delete this email from your computer system(s) and notify the sender by return email, by telephone at
(847) 489-74999, or by fax at (630) 794-9319. Your cooperation is appraeciated. Plense note that if this emalt message contains a
forwarded message or is a reply to a prior message, some or all of the contents of this message or any attachments may not have begn
produced by the sender or Allied Group. Thank you. Allled Group Sustainable Solutions, Inc.

izafg;““}! Befare printing this email or any attachments, please think about your respensibility and commitment to the ENVIROGNMENT.

From: Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D. [mailto:5MBudron@AGSustainableSolutions.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 2:50 AM :
To: |

: N
: C

[ , ‘l
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141572 Date: 12/17/20]12
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b

Cey| | | l B6
Subject: FW: Open Letter: People of Conscience Condemn Israeli Massacre and Call To Sustained Agtion

Deaxl————L

Like you and people of conscious all over the U.S. and throughout the world, we are truly -
saddened and appalled by the shocking dreadful news of the murderous aitack committed by the |
Israell forces against unarmed humanitarian activists on the “Gaza Freedom Flotilla™. This :
massacre will NOT dissuade the determination of people of faith and conviction 10 break the i
illegal and criminal siege and end all acts of collective punishment. Plans are already under way -
for future humanitarian and reliet convoy to break the siege, and will continue until the siegeland |
blockade come to total end.

T know many fine and peace loving individuals who were on board the Flotilla. [ am
especially personally concerned about the safety of Beloved “Peace Dove™ Archbishop Hilarion
Cappucci, who bid me special farewell prior to leaving to Istanbul to join the Flotilla. Imagine
for a moment, [ and several of our mutual friends conld have been on board of that ship, and
could have been amongst those massacred by the Israeli forces on the high seas. May be soos
you, I and 4 delegation of American Jewish, Christian, Muslim and other leaders will lead a
convoy to break the siege, if not already ended. o

No doubt, you agree that like the Israclis, and other pcoples in the Free World, the
Palestinians are entitled to and must have the same equal rights to live free, with justice, pead
and security, Every human life is as dear as the other. Palestinian and Arab life is not less .
precious NOR less sacred than Israeli life. We the embracers and cherishers of justice and peace
for all, need to shore up and substantiate our slogans and rhetoric with real serious action toward
that end. History taught us that when people are determined to be free, they shall be free. Israel’s
survival rests in its ability to co-exist with the Palestinian people with equal justice, peace ang!
security for all- nothing less. .

[¢]

I plan to be in Washinglon D.C. for the ADC 30" Anniversary Convention on June 4'
through June 6™, and call npon you to arrange for a joint-meeting with the “White House” to
rencw our commitment for justice and peace, and usher the way for concrete actions to achieye
sustainable peace.,

|
Best regards, : ‘ i
|

Shafic M. Budron

3

|
%
|
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Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D. . '

President & CEQ
WasteTech* AltEnergy*Techinology & Processes*Construction & Development*Design-Build* MO Bm

Burr Ridge, IL GUS27
Cell (B47) 489-7992 % Fax (630) 794-9329 * www. AGgustaEnablgSOIutmns com

NOTECE: This communicstion (including all attachments) is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to whom it is addressed and
should be kreated as a confidential Allled Group communication that may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you

must not review, retransmit, print, convert to hard copy, copy, disseminate, or use this email or its attachments. If you have received this
amagil in error, please immediately deieke this emafl from your computer system(s} and notify the sender by return email, by telephorje at
{847) 489-799%, or by fax at (630) 794-9329. Your cooperation is apprecisted. Please note that if this email message contains a
forwarded message or is a reply to @ prior message, some or 2!l of the contents of this ge or any attachments may not have begn

produced by the sender or &Allied Group, Thank you. Allled Group Sustainabla Solutions, Inc.

From: Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D. [malito SMBudron@AGSustamableSoiutlons com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 1:42 AM

To: Shafic M. Budron |
Subject: Open Letter: Peopie of Conscience Condemn Israeli Massacre and Call To Sustained Action "

Open Letter To Esteemed Friends, Administration Officials and Congressional Leaders:

This morning we wake up to the dreadful news of Israel’s premeditated massacre
comimitted by the Israeli forces against unarmed humanitarian activisis on the “Gaza Freedom
Flotilla”. Twenty humanitarian workers were slaughtered and about eighty were wounded by the
Israeli forces in International waters. This arrogant murderous act is another flagrant and
provocative detiance for the International Community and another violation of The Universal C
Declaration of Human Rights, The Fourth Geneva Convention, International Law and the U.S, '
Anns Export Act.

Israel’s reprehensible and unfathomable actions are manifestations of a delusional, nedr-
insane and deranged, yet routine, conduct, which threatens regional and world peace. These :
heinous actions with all the local and global implications, as well as the repercussions on U.S,
leadership, responsibility and corresponding National Security and Interests demand from us to
rise to the commensurate level. We must connect and do all which is necessary to restore reasol
and justice amidst insanity and oppression.

1
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I-Street’s Executive Director, Jeremy Ben-Ami, in a statement titled Shocking News Off
Gaza said. “This shocking outcome of an effort to bring humanitarian refief to the people of
Gauza is in part a consequence of the ongoing, counterproductive Israeli biockade of Gaza. J
Street has been and continues to be opposed to the blockade™ ..., “today 1s one more nail in the
coffin for hopes of ending the Israeli-Palestinian conflict peacefully and diplomatically™.

Americans For Peace Now President & CEQ, Debra DeLee, in 2 staternent titled Tragedy
off Gaza Coust said, “An [sraeli attempt to intercept one of the ships that was part of an
internatjonal Gaza aid flotilla ended in disaster.” ..., “one thing is clear: Israel's policy of ,
blockading Gaza is untenable and increasingly indefensible. The time has come for a re- :
evaluation of current policies.” ..., “Israel has learned through painful experience that militany
force alone cammot climinate threats, It is time for a new approach.”

Peace Now Chief, Yariv Oppenheimer, in an Israeli newspaper Ma’ariv titled [srael’s
moral decadence wrote, “Tonight Israel marked a new low point in the way it chose to conter
with its domestic and external policy dissidents™ ..., “With the use of our repression mechanisms
and the encouragement of the IDF spokesman we will again dissociate from reality and the world
and manufacture our own unique script in which we are the victims and the whole world is
against us as usval.” ..., “The price for the unfortunate results of the fleet will be paid primar{ly |
by the families of those who were killed at sea last night. Next in line to pay the price will béthe
residents of Israel who want peace and the end of the conflict with all their hearts, and who wish
to stop the cycle of bloodshed and live in a saner country.” ..., “Without a loud voice of protest
by a patriotic Israeli public calling on its leaders to change course, we will all find ourselves in a
morally and politically decadent country, slowly sinking into the depths.”

It is evident that we have an [sracli leadership which has gone insane and out of touch.
This leadership has become a menace to both lsraclis and Palestinians, regional and world pence.
People of conscious can no longer stay silent and watch idly as Israel gets away with imurder and
~state-inflicted-terrorisin™ time and time again. For the sake of both the Israeli and Palestiniap
peoples, and the peoples of the region and the world, we must take a stand. We are the silent !
majority who failingly allowed insane megalomaniac radicals hijack the agenda and lead us '
closer to doomsday, while in our hearts we embrace and vie for reason, juslice, peace, security
and prosperity for all. It is imperative that, as a minimum, we mobilize and activate our coalition
partners, like-minded organizations and leaders to join in a sustained Movement calling on the
Obama administration and U.S. Congress to ensuring:

1. Independent International Investigation into the Massacre and holding accountable those
responsible for planning, ordering and executing war crimes and crimes against humanity;

[

End of siege, sanction and embargo on Gaza,

3. The Palestinian people, including the Palestinians of Gaza, be afforded the same universal and
inalienable rights as all other peoples in the Free World.

4. No one State, Group or Person is to be placed above the law,

5
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Isracl cannot rationally expect to enjoy peace and security, while at the same time deny them to
the Palestinian people and its neighbors. Israel’s survival will be neither guaranteed by its sheer
military might nor the strengths of its bonds with an external force- no matter how powerful- put
rather by its ability and resolve to live in justice and peace with the Palestinian people. Nothing
else short of that will ever stand!.

o ok sk o ke o oK ok o ook ok ok ok ok ke R Rk R R

Shafic M. Budron, Ph.D.
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 :
Cell (847) 489-7999 |

Shafic M. Budron Co-founder of: 1.) Arab-Jewish For Justice & Peace in the Middle East; 2 )
African Americans for Justice & Peace in Palestine/ Israel; 3.)Council of Arab American
Organizations; and more...

Shafic M. Budron is a National Treasurer and Chair of the Planning Committee of The
American-Arab Anti-Discrimination Committee (ADC), which is non-profit, non-sectarian and non-partisan, | |
is the largest Arab-American civil rights organization in the United States. it was founded in 1980 by |
former Senator James Abourezk to protect the civit rights of people of Arab descent in the United States
and to promote the cultural heritage of the Arabs. ADC has 38 chapters nationwide, inciuding chapters in
every major city in the country, and members in all 50 states.

The ADC Research Institute (ADC-RI), which was founded in 1981, is a Section 501(c)(3) educational
organization that sponsors a wide range of programs on behalf of Arab Americans and of importance to
all Americans. ADC-RI programs include research studies, seminars, conferences and publications that | 5
document and analyze the discrimination faced by Arab Americans in the workplace, schools, media, bnd
governmental agencies and institutions. ADC-RI also celebrates the rich culiural heritage of the Arabs
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!
RELEASED IN PART B5|
Law, Rosemary C
From: Kim, John J (Kimm}
Sent: Saturday, Qctober 16, 2010 6:05 AM
Ta: Daley, John D; Johnson, Karen K; Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne :
Ce: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (LUSUN}; Townley, Stephen G; Schwartz, Jorjathan B;
Perina, Alexandra H
Subject: RE: fiotilla incident -- Comoros-flagged vessel ? .
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED
SensitivityCode: Sensitive
sSBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Daley, John D

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2010 9:31 PM

To: Kim, John J (Kimm); Johnson, Karen K; Jacobson, Linda; Joyce, Anne '
Cc: Buchwald, Todd F; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Townley, Stephen G; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H °
Subject: flotilla incident -- Comoros-flagged vessel ? ! 4

lohn/Karen -

The press is reporting today that lawyers for the families of those killed by Israeli forces in connection with tHe Fiotilla
incident this spring have sent a letter to the JCC Prosecutor urging him to take action. Evidently their jurisdictional d
theory is based on an allegation that the ship, aithough Turkish operated, was flying the Comoros flag and apparenitly 1
7 o
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] ; 1

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141574 Date: 12/17/2012
StateDept03254




UNCGLASSIFIED U.S. Department of Staie Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. GUH1415/74 Date; 12/1/72072

was registered there. While neither Turkey or Israel are Rome Statute parties, Comoros is - ‘ |

Thanks.

B

: !
N

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141574 Date: 12/17/2012
StateDept03255




~ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141576 Date: 12/17/2012 N
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[RELEASED IN PART B5|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Kimball, Emily J !
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 6:04 PM :

Ta: Banos, Mariano H; Swiney, Gabriel; Gorove, Katherine M; Buchwald, Todd F; Jacobsor, Linda
Subject: RE: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.docx ;
Attachments: 110224 QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.docx

These are the edits we suggested for a similar piece in the HRC priorities demarche earlier today. Todd: Doés this look
ok to you? i

Emily S

From: Banos, Mariano H :
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 2:50 PM .
To: Swiney, Gabriel; Gorove, Katherine M; Buchwald, Todd F; Jacobson, Linda; Kimball, Emily J
Subject: RE: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilta.docx

We just did the complimentarity piece with Emily in a sep doc. Looping her in to send her latest language.

Mariano

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Swiney, Gabriel ' i
Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 2:16 PM

Te: Gorove, Kathering M; Buchwald, Todd F; Jacobson, Linda; Banos, Mariano H

Subject: RE: Cleatance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.docx \

Passed the message along,

SBU -
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. :

From: Gorove, Katherine M

Senft: Thursday, February 24, 2011 2:14 PM
Te: Buchwald, Todd F; Swiney, Gabriel; Jacobson, Linda; Banos, Mariano H |
Subject: FW: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.docx '
Importance: High . |

B5 -
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This emait is UNCLASSIFIED.

. . e e e : S P
From: Swiney, Gabriel

Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 1:57 PM _
To: Buchwald, Todd F i
Ce: Gorove, Katherine M

Subject: FW: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Flotilla.dowx
Importance: High

Todd, | haven’t followed Goldstone etc. at all. In Kate's absence, do you want to clear on this?

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Zurcher, Kenneth M

Sent: Thursday, February 24, 2011 1:54 PM :
To: Reisser, Wesley J; Bass, Warren; Ried, Curtis R (USUN); Masitko, Barbara J (USUN); Doutrich, Jack T; Reed, Julla G;
Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Jacobson, Linda; Swiney, Gabriel :
Subject: Clearance: QA35 Goldstone Fiotilla.docx
Importance: High

1

Good afternoon,

Autached please find the HFACO Q&A on Goldstone and the Flotilla. As these papers draw 100% fiom .
previously cleared material — I appreciate any ability to provide your comments/clearance by COB today.

Thank you,
Ken

e o e L e G

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

2 !
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RELEASED IN PART B§|

Law, Rosemary C

)

From: Lapenn, Jessica

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 5:02 PM
Ta: Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN)
Subject: RE: Falk report statement
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

SensitivityCode: Sensitive

Ok, looping in Courtney

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Tuesday, Octeber 19, 2010 5:02 PM
To: Lapenn, Jessica

Subject: RE: Falk report statement

Jessye, Todd and | just talked and he will be sending within minutes some language on this.

From: Laperin, Jessica '
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 5:01 PM
To: Morrison, Andrew L; Honigstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R (USU

Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth M; Narlanjcf ,

Brian R; Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F
Subject: RE: Falk report statement

Given that time is ticking — we have minutes until this must go to Ambassador Rice —we won’t resolve this isg
move the text without the additions ~ but be mindful of the issues that Andy raises for “next time,” which su
will be.

Attached version has new last para (DRL and NEA - plse have a look) taken from yesterday at UNSC that USU
like to add.

Suzanne — can you plse review on BB, and we’ll then pass to Gerry. Thanks! Jessye

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

N) |

ue, sg

ely there

N wolld

' l

Frem: Morrison, Andrew L
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 4:40 PM
To: Lapenn, Jessica; Honigstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN) .

will

i

|

Ce: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; 2urcher, Kenneth M; Nananjq),

3
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Brian R; Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F
Subjeck: FW: Falk report statement

SBUL
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Erom: Morrison, Andrew L
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 4:34 PM
To: Lapenn, Jessica; Honigstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R {USUN)

Ce: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth M: Nafanjo,
|

Brian R; Jacobson, Linda; Buchwald, Todd F
Subject: RE: Fatk report statement

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Lapenn, Jessica

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 3:46 PM
To: Morrison, Andrew L; Honigstein, Michael D; Johnston-Gardrer, Sarah R (DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN
Ce: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth M
Subject: RE: Falk report statement

4

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141583 Date: 12/17/20
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SBU
This emaii is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Morrison, Andrew L
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 3:33 PM
To: Honigstein, Michae! D; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R {USUN); Lapenn, Jessica

Ce: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth i

Subject: RE: Falk report statement

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Honigstein, Michael D
Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2010 3:25 PM
To: Morrison, Andrew L; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL}; Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN); Lapenn, Jessica

Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth M

Subject: Re: Falk report statement
Nl

Mike

Michae! Honigstein

Human Rights Section Chief

Office of Human Rights, Humanitarian and Social
Affairs (IO/HR)

Bureau of International Organizations

From: Morrison, Andrew L

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL); Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN}; Lapenn, Jessica; Honigstein, Michael D
Ce: Cassidy, Joseph P; Evans, Heidi B; Dolan, JoAnn; Doutrich, Jack T; Nossel, Suzanne F; Zurcher, Kenneth M
Sent: Tue Oct 19 15:15:58 2010
Subject: RE: Falk report statement

3

C
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141583 Date; 12/17/2012
StateDept03260




UNULASSIFIER U, Department Orf state Lase NO. F=-20710-U4103 DOC NO. LUD1471080 LEIe: 1471 112Ul

Privacy/PH
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 2:53 PM :
To: Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN}; Lapenn, Jessica; Honigstein, Michael D ;
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P; Morrison, Andrew L
Subject: RE: Falk report statement

Thank you. Barbara already looked at it and did not have any additions or need to clear. | think we need to move thls P
to the FOs of 10 and DRL 5o get out of here by COB, ;

Will 10 bring this to DAS Nossel for approval? ' '

Best, 1
Sarah : "

Sarah johnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Demacracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL}
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs (MLGA)
202-647-2286

- RS S

From. Nemroff Courtney R (USUN)

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 2:20 PM

To: Lapenn, Jessica; Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Honigstein, Michael D
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P; Morrison, Andrew L

Subject: RE: Falk report statement

This email is UNCLASSIFIED. ; q

¥

From. Lapenn Jessica
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 2:08 PM

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141583 Date: 12/17/201‘2
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To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL); Honigstein, Michael D
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P; Morrison, Andrew L; Nemroff, Courtney R (USUN)
Subject: RE: Falk report statement !

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Fromm: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R (DRL)
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 2:07 PM i
To: Lapenn, Jessica; Honigstein, Michael D _
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P ;
Subject: Falk report statement . ;

it has been cieared with D(S) and is attached. | am in discussions with NEA and SEMEP about it now, but otherwisej itis
cleared and ready for FO approval in 10 and DRL. !

Best, . J
Sarah .

Sarah Johnston-Gardner ]
Foreign Affairs Officer
Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor {DRL} } '
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs {MLGA) '
202-647-2286 |

— R e ) e I

From: Lapenn, Jessica

Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 1:33 PM

To: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL}; Honigstein, Michael D
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P

Subject: RE: Meeting with Arthur Lenk

Can you send me current draft of Falk statement? Thanks!

SBuU :
This email is UNCLASSIFIED. !

7
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i
|

- .- e e . - b

From: Johnston-Gardner, Sarah R {DRL)
Sent: Monday, Ociober 18, 2010 6:22 PM
Te: Honigstein, Michael D; Lapenn, Jessica
Cc: Cassidy, Joseph P

Subject: Meeting with Arthur Lenk

Hello,

| ran into Eliav from the Israeli embassy and he told me Arthur Lenk from the MFA will be in town this Friday and is
meeting with DAS Nossel. Would you mind if we joined?

Best,
Sarah

Sarah lohnston-Gardner

Foreign Affairs Officer

Bureau of Democracy, Human Rights and Labor (DRL}
Office of Multilateral and Global Affairs {MLGA)
202-647-2286

|
o
.
N
o
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Law, Rosemary C RELEASED IN PART |
BS, B !
From: Martin, Julie B '
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 1:25 PM
To: Aswad, Evelyn M j
Cc: Banos, Mariano H; Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Jacohson, Lindg;
Harris, Rohert K ‘
Subject: RE: HRC Gaza resolution - status of negotiations
Classificaiion: UNCLASSIFIED
Thanks, Evelyn. Following our call with Suzanne, Eileen, et. al, Mariano and others will take a look at the text! to idéntily BS
This email is UNGLASSIFIED.
From: Aswad, Evelyn M
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 5:29 PM \
To: Martin, Julie B o
Ce: Banos, Marianoc H; Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E; Jacobsen, Linda; Harris, Robert K 1
Subject: FW: HRC Gaza resolution - status of negotiations ]
L ONLY E-PMAIL CHAIN !
¢ o
From: Cassayre, Mark ] .
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 9:33 AM o
To: 'Shapiro, Daniel B.'; Powell, Catherine; Ostermeier, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Nossel, Suzanne F; j |
jpcassidy | Ashraf, Madeeha S; Cue, Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, J.R.; Wecker, John|A; Aswad
Eveiyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Knopf, Payton L; Legal-HRR-DL; Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; S{mon,
Jennifer J; Busby, Scott W.; Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Donahoe, Eileen|C; KHanna, B8
Melanie J; Griffiths, Douglas M; Kumar, Prem G.; Wolff, Alex D {USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN}; Schedlbauer, Amy W |
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL; Anderson, Gerald ; 1
Feltman, Jeffrey D; 10-HR-DL; Martin, Julie B i
Subject: HRC Gaza resolution - status of negotiations ‘ ]
B5
\ f
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] D
i
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B5

There were some other minor suggestions for language changes, but nothing too major.

From: Shaprro Daniel B. [mailto:Daniel_B._Shapiro@nss.eop.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 2:58 PM

To: Powell, Catherine; Ostermeier, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Nossel, Suzanne F; jpcassidyd } Ashraf,

H

Madéeha

S; Cue, Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, J.R.; Wecker, John A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Knopf, B6

Payton L; Legal-HRR-DL; Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Tedd C; Simon, Jennifer J; Busby, Scott W.; Per

Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pompet, Stephen E; Donahoe, E:teen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Khanna, Melanle 3

Griffiths, Douglas M; Kumar, Prem G Wolff, Alex D (USUN), Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Schedibauer, Amy W
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Mu:hael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL; Anderson, Gel
Feltman, Jeffrey D; 10-HR-DL

Subject: RE: Instruction and EOV for HRC vote - clearance by 10 AM EST

na,

rald q,

From: Powell, Catherine [mailto:PowellC@state.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 8:56 AM .
Yo: Ostermeler, Amy A; Bass, Warren; Nossel, Suzanne F; jpcassidy] | Ashraf, Madeeha S; Cue, |

Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, J.R.; Wecker, John A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Knopf, Payton L; Leg

Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Simon, Jennifer J; Busby, Scott W.; Perina, Alexandra H; Schwart

B; Pomper, Stephen E; Donahoe, Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Khanna, Melanie J; Griffiths, Douglas M; Shapirg|

Kumar, Prem G.; Wolff, Alex D (USUN); Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Schedibauer, Amy W
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL; Anderson, Ge

Feltman, Jeffrey D; IO-HR-DL 1 :

Subject: Re: Instruction and EOV for HRC vote - clearance by 10 AM EST

Looping in Bill Burke-White and Dafna Rand for S/P.

lourdes C}
al-HRR-DL; BO
z, Jonathan
Danigel Bi;

rald C; :

From: Osterrneier, Amy A

To: Bass, Warren; Nossel, Suzanne F; ‘jpcassidy. | <jpcassidyl__}: Ashraf, Madeeha §;
Jeffreyi_ G| Bs6

Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, 1.R.; Wecker, John A; Powell, Catherine; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giaugue,
Knopf, Payton L; Legal-HRR-DL; Goldberger, Thomas H; Hoimstrom, Todd C; Simon, Jennifer J;

‘scott_w._busby@nss.eop.gov’ <scott_w._busby@nss.eop.gov>; Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; DompEr,

Stephen E; Donahoe, Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Khanna, Melanie J; Griffiths, Douglas M; 'dshapiro@nsc.eop.
<dshapiro@nsc.eop.gov>; 'Prem _G._Kumar@nsc.eop.gov' <Prem_G._Kumar@nsc.eop.gov>; Wolff, Alex D (U
Germain, Ellen J (USUN); Schedlbauer, Amy W

Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL; Anderson, Gerald q,

Feitman, Jeffrey D; 10-HR-DL
Sent: Tue Jun 01 08:49:16 2010
Subject: Instruction and EQV for HRC vote - clearance by 10 AM EST

Thanks to Warren and Scott for their suggestions. I've added a suggested_;{ and the NSC
in the attached (tracked).

Cué}

gov' |
SUN);

s chahges BS
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We'd appreciate clearance/comments from others on the draft L B5|

Many thanks,
Amy : i

Amy A, Ostermeier, Deputy Director
Bureau of International Organization Affairs ‘
Office of Human Rights {(10/HR} |
(ph} 202-647-3901 bl
(fx) 202-647-4628 i
ostermeieraa@state.gov S

RN VR

From: Bass, Warren .
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 7:38 AM b
To: Nossel, Suzanne F; Ypcassidy@hotmail.com’; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Cue, Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, J.R.
Wecker, John A; Powell, Catherine; Ostermeier, Amy A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Knopf, Payton l; Legal-
HRR-DL; Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Simon, Jennifer J; 'scott_w._busby@nss.ecp.gov’; Pering, | |
Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E; Donahoe, Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Khanna, Melanie J; |
Griffiths, Douglas M; ‘dshapiro@nsc.ecp.gov’; 'Prem_G._Kumar@nsc.eop.gov'; Wolff, Alex D (USUN); Germain, Eller) ]
{USUN); Schedibauer, Amy W ;
Cc: Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL
Subject: Re: Instruction and EQV for HRC vote tomarrow - clearance by 10 AM EST

Adding USUN/NY and NSC/NENA. | |

From: Nossel, Suzanne F
To: 'jpcassidy@hotmail.com’ <jpcassidy@haotmail.com>; Ashraf, Madeeha S; Cue, Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia;
Littlejohn, J.R.; Wecker, John A; Powell, Catherine; Ostermeier, Amy A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G} Knopf,
Payton L; Legal -HRR-DL; Goldberger Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Simon, Jennifer J; Bass, Warren;
'scott_w._busby@nss.eop.gov' <scott_w._busby@nss.eop.gov>; Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pompt—:r
Stephen E; Donahoe, Eileen C; Cassayre, Mark J; Khanna, Melanie J; Griffiths, Douglas M o
Cc: Fnzpatnck Kathieen M; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P; DRL-MLGA-DL ;
Sent: Mon May 31 23:32:34 2010

Subject: Instruction and EOQV for HRC vote tomorrow - clearance by 10 AM EST

'
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"

Many thanks,
Suzanne

The Grave Altacks by Israeli Forces Against the Humanitarian Boat Convoy

Guided by the purposes and the principles of the United Nations Charter, as well as by the provisions of the U Wersal
Dectaration for Human Righis,

| .
|

|
Taking into consideration the provisions of the Fourth Geneva Convention for the protection of civilian persons in tlrries %;f
war of 12 August 1949,

!
Emphasizing the importance of the safety and well-being of all civilians including humanitarian persennel, i

Expressing grave concern also at the deepening humanitarian crisis in Occupied Gaza,

b

Emphasizing the need to ensure sustained and requiar flow of goods and people into Oceupied Gaza and weltLomlnp lhle
initiatives aimed at creating and opening humanitarian corridors and other mechanisms for the sustained delivery of: |
humanitarian aid, o

1. Condemns in the strongest terms possible the outragecus attack by the Israeli forces against the humanitarjan flotillalof
ships which resulted in the killing and injuring of many innocent civilians from different countries; ' |

2. Deeply deplores the loss of life of innocent civilians and expresses its deepest sympathy and condolences to the 5
victims and their families; :

3. Requests the ICRC to seek and provide information on the whereabouts status and condition of the detained and ‘
injured persons | |
é

4. Demands the Occupying Power Israel to Immediately release all detained men and material and facilitate their safe
return to their homelands. )

5. Calls upon the Occupying power Israel to ensure the unimpeded provision of humanitarian assistance, including gf
food, fuel and medical treatment to the occupied Gaza strip; :

6. Welcomes the statements of the Secretary General UN and the High Commissioner for Human Rights condemning tHe
Israelt attacks and calis for the full accountability and credible independent inquiries into these attacks. ;

7. Decides to dispatch an independent international fact finding mission to investigate violations of international law '
resulting fram the Israeli attacks on the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance.

8. Decides to remain seized of this matter.

From: Joseph Cassidy |
To: Ashraf, Madeeha S; Cue, Lourdes C; Aguilera, Patricia; Littlejohn, ).R.; Wecker, John A; Powell, Catherine |

4
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Ostermeier, Amy A; Aswad, Evelyn M; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Knopf, Payton L; Legal-HRR-DL; Goldberger, Thomias H; |

Holmstrom, Todd C; Simon, Jennifer J; Bass, Warren; scott_w._busby@nss.eop.gov <scott_w._busby@nss.eo
Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pomper, Stephen E

Cc: Fizpatrick, Kathlean M; Nossel, Suzanne F; Posner, Michael H; Geneva HRC; Cassidy, Joseph P;
jpeassidy@hotmail.com <jpcassidy@hotmail.com>; DRL-MLGA-DL

Sent: Mon May 31 16:37:03 2010

Subject: URGENT -- Clearance needed Monday afternoon

201772012

p.govi;

1 ask that you review and clear this statement, which will be delivered tomorrow morning by Am

bassador

Donohoe at a special event within this UN Human Rights Council session, as soon as possible. ‘

| B5

Thanks, Joe

{begin text)

Statement by Ambassador Eileen Donohoe on the Flotilia Incident
for the Human Rights Council special session, June 1, 2010

Thank you, Mr. President.

BS

Co
|
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1

Thank you.

&

o
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RELEASED IN PART BS,BG}

Law, Rosemary C

From: Martin, Julie B
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 6:35 AM :
To: Ostermeier, Amy A; Geneva HRC Delegation; Griffiths, Douglas M; Cassidy, Jeseph P;

Nossel, Suzanne F; Donoghue, Joan E; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Harris, Fobert
K; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariano H; Townley, Stephen G; 7
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Anderson, Gerald C; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M

Subject: Re: Urgent Guidance Request RE Gaza Flotilla Resolution -

Amy - thanks, this is in our mark-up. ‘ ‘

----- Original Message ----- ;
from: Qstermeier, Amy A :
To: Martin, Julie B; Geneva HRC Delegation; Griffiths, Douglas M; Cassidy, Joseph P;| Nossel,
Suzanne F; Donoghue, Joan E; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Harris, Robert K; Schwartz,
Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariano H; Townley, Stephen G; Jacobson, Lingda; |
Heinemann, Thomas B; Anderson, Gerald C; Fitzpatrick, Kathleen M .
Sent: Tue Jun @1 ©6:30:27 2816 ‘

Subject: Re: Urgent Guidance Request RE Gaza Flotilla Resclution :

Thanks, : J

AO '
Sent via blackberry

----- Original Message -----

From: Martin, Julie B

To: Geneva HRC Delegation; Griffiths, Douglas M; Cassidy, Joseph P; Nossel, Suzanne F;
Ostermeier, Amy A; Donoghue, Joan E; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Harris, Ré ert}K;
Schwartz, lonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Banos, Mariano H; Townley, Stephen G; Jacpbson, |
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B

Sent: Tue Jun 81 ©6:13:56 2816

Subject: Urgent Guidance Request RE Gaza Flotilla Resolution

7
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] ' ‘
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. !
we need to know how critical it is to adfdress |
these points and others you may identify.
My blackberry is ) should you wish to reach me via phone,
Thanks,
Julie
\
‘J
I
o
|
Do
|
|
8

' |
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Law, Rosemary C

B5

From: McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 5:09 PM

To: Jacohson, Linda; Gorove, Katherine M; Harris, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M
Ce: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Is Quartet investig'n feasible with HRC investig'n?

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

SensitivityCode: Sensitive

SBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Frome: Jacobson, Linda
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 5:03 PM

Te: Gorove, Katherine M; Harris, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; McLeod, Mary {(USUN)
Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G

Subjeet: RE: Is Quartet investig'n feasible with HRC investig'n?

Erom: Gorove, Katherine M
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 4;53 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Harrls, Robert K; Aswad, Evelyn M; Mcleod, Mary {USUN)
Cc: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Townley, Stephen G

Subject: Is Quartet investig'n feasible with HRC investig'n?

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASED IN PART B5|
Law, Rosemary ©

From: Mcleod, Mary {USUN)
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:35 PM
To: Mitchell, Mary T; Jacobson, Linda
Ce: Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED ;
SensitivityCode: Sensitive :
[
sBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

Frem: Mitchell, Mary T

Sent; Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:14 PM
To: Jacobson, Linda; MclLeod, Mary (USUN)
Ce: Towniey, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation

You're welcome,

From: Jacobson, Linda
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:08 PM

To: Mitchell, Mary T; McLeod, Mary {USUN)
Cc: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation

Thanks, very helpful.

From: Mitchell, Mary T

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:06 PM
To: Jacobson, Linda; McLeod, Mary (USUN)
Ce: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: Flotilla investigation

Hi Linda

I

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweﬂ
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From: Jaccbson, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:48 PM
To: Mitchell, Mary T; McLeod, Mary {USUN)
€c: Townley, Stephen G

Subject: Flotilla investigation

»|

Steve and | were just asked by Jim to pull some material together {due tonight} on “options

Thanks for your help and sorry for the mad rush. Linda .

Iié
.
-

11

|
|
|
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[RELEASED IN FULL]

REPORT ON THE ISRAELT ATTACK
ON THE HUMANITARIAN AID CONVOY TO GAZA

ON 31 MAY 2010

TURKISH NATIONAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY

FEBRUARY 2011
ANKARA

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Israeli military forces on the ecarly hours of 31 May 2010 attacked in
international waters an international and multi-faith convoy of six ships
organized by a coalition of NGOs from 37 countries transporting certified
humanitarian aid to the Gaza Strip. The attack took place 72 nautical miles from
the nearest coast, and 64 nautical miles from the zone declared unlawfully, as
will be seen, blockaded by Israel. As a result of the attack, eight Turkish citizens
and one US citizen of Turkish descent were killed. Over 70 passengers from a

host of nationalities were wounded. One of these remains in a coma to this day.

The vessels that set sail from Turkey had been duly inspected for security,
immigration and customs. The passengers on board, their personal belongings
and the large volume of humanitarian aid had also been thoroughly checked. It
was firmly established that there were no firearms or any sort of weapon on
board the vessels. Those Turkish ports from where the ships in the convoy set
sail are duly certified under the International Ship and Port Facility Security

Code (ISPS) of the International Maritime Organization.

The Israeli forces mounted a full-fledged and well-planned attack with frigates,
helicopters, zodiacs, submarines, and elite combat troops heavily armed with
machine guns, laser-guided rifles, pistols and modified paintball rifles. The
Israeli soldiers shot from the helicopter onto the Mavi Marmara using live

ammunition and killing two passengers before any Israeli soldier descended on

the deck. During the attack, excessive, indiscriminate and disproportionate force
was used by the Israeli soldiers against the civilians on board. The Israeli
military action was of excessive disproportion to such magnitude that the United
Nations Human Rights Council Fact-Finding Mission used the terms “totally

unnecessary and incredible violence...unacceptable level of brutality”. The

Report of the Turkish Commission of Inguiry +
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passengers only exercised a lawful right of self-defense, without any firearms,

against the armed attack of the Israeli forces.

Once the Israeli forces took over the vessel, instead of exercising caution and
restraint, they continued to brutalize and terrorize the passengers, abusing them
physically, verbally and psychologically. The passengers were beaten, Kicked,
elbowed, punched, deprived of food and water, handcuffed, left exposed to sun,

sprayed with sea-water for hours, and denied toilet access.

During and after the ten hours of sailing to the port of Ashdod in Israel, most of
the passengers were kept handcuffed. Some of them were stripped and searched;
women were subjected to sexually bumiliating treatment; one of them, a
journalist, was forced to strip multiple times and a metal detector was placed

between her legs.

All passengers were forced to sign incriminatory statements in Hebrew which
most did not even understand; they were not allowed access to legal assistance,
or to consular officials, nor provided with proper and timely medical care. They
were denied adequate food and were confined to restricted spaces with extreme

temperatures.

The Israeli officials confiscated all property belonging to the passengers. Aside
from the unlawful seizure of personal property, evidences of critical importance

to shed light on the attack was destroyed, tampered with or despoiled.

The severe abuse against the passengers continued throughout their stay in
Israel, including their transport to prison/hospital and therefrom to the Ben
Gurion Airport which was the scene to the second most brutal episode in this

tragedy. The passengers who arrived at the airport, exhausted by the ordeal they

Report of the Turkish Commission of inguiry 3
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were subjected to, were taunted, paraded as terrorists and enemies, verbally
abused, spat on, bullied, pushed around and manhandled just to spark the
slightest reaction which would be countered with massive retribution, resulting
in mass beatings where officers brutalizing the passengers were shielded from

view by their colleagues.

The bodies of the deceased were completely washed and repatriated to Turkey
without any accompanying medical and autopsy reports. The Mavi Marmara
itself, when returned after being held for 66 days in Ashdod, had been scrubbed
down thoroughly, blood stains completely washed off, bullet holes painted over;
ship records, Captain’s log, computer hardware, ship documents seized, CCTV
cameras smashed, all photographic footage seized and presumably destroyed or

withheld.

The unlawfulness of the attack put aside, the killing of nine civilian passengers
on the Mavi Marmara was first and foremost a violation of the right to life
enshrined in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and also in the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR) to which Israel
has been a party since 1991. International law was also violated as a result of
mistreatment of injured and other passengers on board of the Mavi Marmara and

in Ashdod by the Israeli forces and officials.

Furthermore, the fact that the Israeli forces committed torture, engaged in
degrading and inhurnan treatment; fofcibly deprived passengers of their human
rights and fundamental freedoms, including the right to privacy, physical
security and due process; and abused them physically and psychologically
constitutes clear violations of the prohibition of torture and ill-treatment under
Article 7 of the ICCPR and the Convention against Torture and Other Cruel,

Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment (CAT) to which Israel has been

Report of the Turkish Commission of Inquiry 6
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a party since 1991. These acts also constitute a breach of Article 3 of the

European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR).

The Israeli attack on the humanitarian aid convoy in international waters
constitutes a violation of freedom of navigation and safety of navigation on the
high seas. Freedom of navigation on the high seas is a long-standing rule of
customary international law. The 1958 High Seas Convention and the 1982
United Nations Law of the Sea Convention codify what widely recognized to be
the customary international rules of the freedom of the high seas. One of the
components of freedom of the high seas is the exclusive jurisdiction of the flag

State.

The Law of the Sea restricts the right of warships to seize a foreign ship, and its
property and arrest the persons on board only in the case of pirate ships or

aircraft.

Israel’s failure to recognize its armed conflict with Hamas as one of
international character precludes it from establishing any lawful naval blockade
off the Gaza Strip. Since Israel’s naval “blockade™ on the Gaza Strip is
unlawful, any act it performs as a function of this “blockade” is also unlawful

par excellence.

Israel’s naval “blockade” against the Gaza Strip, as it existed on 31 May 2010,
was also in violation of the principles of international law governing blockade,

as laid down in the San Remo Manual.

Even assuming, in arguendum, the validity of the basis of Israel’s “blockade”,
its implementation would render it unlawful. It was excessive, unreasonable, and

disproportionate to any military advantage to be achieved in relation to its

Repore of the Turkish Comumnission of Ingniry 7
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impact on the civilian population. This has been documented by numerous UN

agencies and the international community at large.

Numerous official statements acknowledged that Israel’s blockade was “illegal”
and had to be lifted, describing the blockade as “collective punishment on

civilians.”

The blockade failed to meet the other requirements of a lawful naval blockade
under international law, such as specifying the duration and extent of the

blockade.

Israel retains effective control over the Gaza Strip and is generally recognized
by the international community and the UN as the occupying power there. As a
result, Israel cannot lawfully impose a blockade on the Gaza Strip. From this
perspective also, the Israeli blockade is illegal and any interdiction based on

such blockade is, by definition, unlawful.

Finally, it is a central principle of international law that when a state violates its
international obligations, it has a duty to make reparations for the wrongs

committed and provide for compensation.

This case is a critical litmus test for the international community in upholding
the rule of law. No State should be allowed to act above the law. Impunity must
give way to accountability. Israel must acknowledge its responsibility and
accordingly convey a public apology to the Republic of Turkey and provide

compensation for all damages and losses resulting from its unlawful attack.

The condemnation of Israel’s attack is also crucial for the future of the right of

navigation on the high seas. Otherwise, a dangerous precedential derogation

Repart of the Turkish Commission of Inquiry 3
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from that paramount right will be established—with far-reaching ramifications

that may not be accurately estimated today.

Repore of the Turkish Connmission of Inquiry 9
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INTRODUCTION

On 11 August 2010, a Turkish National Commission of Inquiry was established
to examine the Israeli military attack in international waters against the
international aid convoy on 31 May 2010 which resulted in the killing of nine
civilians and injury of many others. The Commission investigated the factual
background of the attack, the ensuing violence and mistreatment endured by the

passengers, as well as the legal implications and consequences of these acts.

The Turkish National Commission of Inquiry included senior officials from the
Board of Inspectors in the Office of the Prime Minister, the Ministry of Justice,
the Ministry of Interior, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and the Under—_
Secretariat for Maritime Affairs. The Commission examined pertinent
international legal instruments as well as numerous depositions made and
complaints lodged by survivors to Turkish judicial authorities upon their return
to Turkey, solicited verbal and written testimonies from key witnesses, met with
relevant authorities, consulted international law experts of renown, and carried
out an on-site inspection in the Port of Iskenderun on those vessels in the convoy

which had set sail from Turkish ports.

The Turkish Commission of Inquiry was also tasked to prepare a report for
consideration by the Panel of Inquiry set up by the UN Secretary-General on 2
August 2010 on the matter, in accordance with the Presidential Statement issued
by the UN Security Council on I June 2010 which called for a “prompt,
impartial, credible and transparent investigation conforming to international

standards”.

The text of the abovementioned Presidential Statement is presented hereby to

provide a full view of the basis of the UN inquiry process.

Report of the Turkish Comtmission of lnguiry 13
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(S/PRST/2010/9)

“The Security Council deeply regrets the loss of life and injuries resulting from the
use of force during the Israeli military operation in international waters against the
convoy sailing to Gaza. The Council, in this context, condemns those acts which
resulted in the loss of at least ten civilians and many wounded, and expresses its
condolences to their families.

“The Security Council requests the immediate release of the ships as well as the
civilians held by Israel. The Council urges Israel to permit full consular access, to
allow the countries concerned to retrieve their deceased and wounded immediately,
and io ensure the delivery of humanitarian assistance from the convoy to ilts
destination,

“The Security Council takes note of the statement of the UN Secretary-General on the
need to have a full investigation into the matter and it calls for a prompt, impartial,
credible and transparent investigation conforming to international standards.

“The Security Council stresses that the situation in Gaza is not susiainable. The
Council re-emphasizes the importance of the full implementation of Resolutions 1850
and 1860. In thar context, it reiterates its grave concern at the humanitarign situation
in Gaza and stresses the need for sustained and regular flow of goods and people to
Gaza as well as unimpeded provision and distribution of humanitarian assistance
throughout Gaza,

“The Security Council underscores that the only viahle solution to Israeli-Pglestinian
conflict is an agreement negotiated between the parties and re-emphasizes that only a
two-State solution, with an independent and viable Palestinian State living side by
side in peace and security with Israel and its other neighbours, could bring peace to
the region.

“The Security Council expresses support for the proximily talks and voices concern
that this incident rook place while the proximity taths are underway and urges the
parties to act with restraini, avoiding any unilateral and provocative actions, and all
international partners to promote an atmosphere of cooperation between the parties
and throughout the region.”

This final report is a follow-up to the Interim Report submitted to the Panel on 1

September 2010, in pursuance of the abovementioned task.

The Commission remains committed to the fullest possible cooperation with the
UN Panel of Inquiry. It accordingly stands ready and willing to furnish further

information and clarification, wherever and whenever required.

Repore of the Turkish Conumissien of Ingairy 11
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I. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

“In international law, as in internal law, the
ends do not justify the means. The state’s power
is not unlimited. Not all of the means are
permitted.” "It is when the cannons roar that
we especially need the
laws. "

The Israeli Supreme Court, 11 December 2005

A. The international humanitarian aid convoy

In order to fully grasp the context and circumstances under which the tragedy
untfolded in international waters on 31 May 2010, it is essential to have a clear
understanding of the background which led to the organization of an
international humanitarian aid convoy for the Gaza Strip and Israel’s subsequent

attack thereon.

Israel was in full occupation of the Gaza Strip between 1967 and 2005. Under
the disengagement in 2005, Israel withdrew its military and civilian components

from the Gaza Strip, while still maintaining effective control over this area.

Hamas’ success at the legislative elections in 2006 prompted Israel to adopt
policies aimed at delegitimizing Hamas. These policies picked up pace in 2007,
as Hamas gained the upper hand against Fatah in the internecine struggle in the

Gaza Strip.

While the makeshift rockets and mortars fired from the Gaza Strip to the

southernmost areas of Isracl caused few casualties and little material damage,

Report of the Turkish Commission of iguiry 12

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05141703 Date; 12/12/2012
StateDept03287



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State (Case No. F-2070-041683 Doc No, CGDD141/03 Date; 12/12/2012

they provided Israel with a pretext to take action. Israel disproportionatcly
responded with strict measures suffocating the Gaza Strip’s entire population of
approximately 1.5 million, half of which are children. These measures were
aimed at the movement of persons, goods and capital in and out of the Gaza
Strip, as well as the provision of electricity and fuel. Meanwhile Israel also
sustained its punitive military actions against the Gaza Strip, which included
systematic air, naval and land operations causing many civilian deaths since

2005.

It was against such a backdrop that Israel also imposed air, maritime, and land

“blockades” against the GGaza Strip.

At the end of 2008, Israel launched a full-scale military assault on the Gaza
Strip. The attack caused some 1,400 deaths, mostly women and children, as well
as the destruction of a substantial portion of the already weak infrastructure. The
devastation was so great that an international donors’ conference was convened
to help Gazans rebuild their livelihoods. Despite pledges amounting to 4.5
billion USD, Israel’s prohibitive policies against the Gaza Strip prevented any
meaningful improvement on the ground, even bringing the United Nations

projects to a standstill.

The continuing deterioration of the situation and the Gazans’ plight caused ever
increasing alarm and concern within the international community. As it became
evident that Israel’s policies would continue to hinder the provision of adequate
supplies from land, attention was turned to the idea of bringing in the assistance

via the sea. Ultimately, Mr. John Ging, UN Relief and Works Agency’s then-

Reporr of the Turkish Comnrizsion of Ingniry 13
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Director of Operations in Gaza had to make a public call to the international

community to bring aid to Gaza by sea.'

Attempts to assist Gaza by sea were not a novelty. The grim situation in Gaza
had already led to the organization of various humanitarian missions. Following
Israel’s above-mentioned military operation, these attempts found a new source
of inspiration in United Nations Security Council Resolution 1860 where the
Council, expressing grave concern at the deepening humanitarian crisis in Gaza,
and emphasizing the need to ensure sustained and regular flow of goods and
people through the Gaza crossings, called for the unimpeded provision and
distribution throughout Gaza of humanitarian assistance, including of food, fuel
and medical treatment; welcomed the initiatives aimed at creating and opening
humanitarian corridors and other mechanisms for the sustained delivery of
humanitarian aid; and called on Member States to support international efforts to

alleviate the humanitarian and economic situation in Gaza.’

It is within such a context that a multitude of NGO’s from a variety of countries
came together in a coalition to help alleviate the alarming humanitarian crisis in
Gaza. The principal Turkish NGO within the coalition was “Insan Hak ve
Hiirriyetleri Vakfy” (the “Foundation for Human Rights and Freedoms™---THH),
which enjoys consultative status within the UN ECOSOC and performs

humanitarian activities in over 120 couniries worldwide since 1992.

The coalition organized an international and multi-faith convoy of ships laden

with certified humanitarian aid. The ships set sail in May 2010 from different

! See John Ging’s statements, Isracl wanls clarification about UNRWA Gaza Director's call 1o break the siege,
The Middle East Monitor, 4 May 2010, <http://www.middleeastmonitor.org.uk/news/middle-cast/980-israel-
wants-clarification-about-unrwa-gaza-directorscall-to-break-the-giege> 3 February 2011

2Security Council, United Nalions, Resolution on the Silyation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian
uestion, S/RES/1860
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countries. The convoy consisted of passenger vessels “Mavi Marmara™
(Comoros), “Sfendoni” (Togo) (referred to in some instances as the “80007),
“Challenger I" (US) and cargo vessels “Gazze I” (Turkish), “Eleftheri
Mesogeio” (Greek) (also referred to in some instances as the “Sofia”), “Defne-

Y* (Kiribati).> The total cargo on the six ships was in excess of 10,000 tons.*

The passengers included Members of Parliaments from different European
countries as well as a Member of the Knesset, academics, journalists, former
diplomats including a retired US ambassador, religious leaders, elderly people,
women, and the one-year-old son of the Mavi Marmara’s Chief Engineer.>®
These passengers, who came from different walks of life and backgrounds, had

united behind the humane goal of helping other persons in distress.

B. The vessels that departed from Turkish poris

The Mavi Marmara left Istanbul on 22 May 2010 with a crew of 29 and a
cleaning and maintenance personnel of 42.” The Port of Zeytinburnu (Istanbul),
as all Turkish ports used by the vessels in the convoy, has an International Ship
and Port Facility Security (ISPS) Certificate under the Convention on Safety of
Life at Sea (SOLAS).? All crew members and passengers were subjected to x-
ray checks, and customs and passport controls conforming to the pertinent
international standards.’ On 25 May 2010, the vessel docked at the Port of
Antalya which it left on 28 May 2010 with a total of 546 passengers and 29 crew

*For phatographs of the vessels, see: The Foundation for Human Rights and Freedoms and Humanilarian Relief,
Palestine Qur Route Humanitarian Aid Our Load Convoy Campaign Summary Report, p.12
<hitp:/fwww.ihh.org.tr/uptoads/2010/insaniyardim-filosu-ozet-raporu_en.pdf>, {Accessed 14 July 2010)

“For a comprehensive description of Lhe cargo, see Annex 3 (Section 14).

% Far the crew and passenger lists of the vessels Mavi Marmara, Gazze and Defne-Y, see Annex 3 (Section 1-4),
% A video footage of the said baby is in Annex 7 (Clip19),

" For the testimony of Captain Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section1/i)

* For the Statement of Compliance Documents (ISPS) af the Ports of Istanbul, Antalya, Iskenderun and
Zeylinburnu, see Annex 3 (Section 5)

® For the customs records of the passenpers and crew of the Mavi Marmara, see Annex 4 (Section 2 & 7)
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members.'” Again, all the passengers and crew were subjected to the same
stringent x-ray checks as well as customs and passport controls. All personal

belongings and cargo were also thoroughly inspected and cleared.'” >

‘The Gazze-I left the Port of Iskenderun on 22 May 2010 with a crew of thirteen
and five passengers, while the Defne-Y departed the Port of Zeytinburnu,
Istanbul, on 24 May 2010 with a crew of thirteen and seven passengers. Both

vessels underwent similar rigorous checks and controls.

On 28 May 2010, the Mavi Marmara sailed towards the meeting point south of
the island of Cyprus where all the vessels in the convoy were expected to get
together. At the meeting point, Challenger-1I was discovered to have become
unfit to complete the rest of the planned journey. As a result, its 14 passengers
were transferred to the Mavi Marmara.'* The personal effects of the new arrivals

were thoroughly checked by the crew of the Mavi Marmara.

The convoy sailed from the meeting point on 30 May 2010 at 16.00 on a bearing
of 222°.%

C. Diplomatic contacts prior to the departure of the convoy
A number of diplomatic representations were carried out by Israeli authorities in
Tel Aviv, Jerusalem and Ankara, demanding that Turkish authorities deny the

convoy departure from Turkish ports, also insisting that, should the convoy sail

on as planned, the aid be routed to Israel for inspection and subsequent delivery

to its destination.

' For the customs reeords of the passengers and crew of the Mavi Marmara, see Annex 4 (Section2 & 7)

' For the written deposition of First Captain Mr. Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 {Section /i)

'? For the Stalement of Compliance Documents of the Porl of Antalya, see Annex 3 (Section 5)

" For the Part Authority Records of Mavi Marmara, see Annex 3 (Section 1 & 2)

" For a list the passengers who boarded the Mavi Marmara from the Challenger-11, see Annex 3 {Seclion 8)
¥ For the map of the coordinates of the vessels during the time of journey see, Annex 3 (Section 5
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In reply, the Turkish authorities stressed the difficulties, in an open and
democratic society, in preventing an NGO endeavor from lawfully departing
Turkish ports. Nonetheless, the Turkish authorities pledged to inform the
convoy’s Turkish participants about the messages conveyed by Israel and to try
to convince them to take the aid to Ashdod in Israel or to Al-Arish in Egypt. All
these steps were taken prior to the departure of the convoy. The Turkish
authorities aiso urged Israel repeatedly to act with maximum restraint and to

avoid using force to intercept the vessels.

On 28 May 2010, the Undersecretary of the Turkish Ministry of Foreign Affairs
told the US Ambassador in Ankara that contacts with the convoy’s Turkish
participants were stariing to bear fruit, and that the IHH representatives agreed
to eventually dock at Al-Arish. But the convoy would first try to approach the
Gaza Strip and, if necessary, alter its course to Al-Arish. The Undersecretary
also cautioned that Israel should act with maximum restraint and avoid using
force by any means. He asked the US Ambassador to pass this message on to
Israel. A few hours later, the Director General of the Israeli Ministry of Foreign

Affairs called the Undersecretary to express their accord to the above.

D. The Israeli attack

Israeli forces, undermining the above-mentioned understanding, attacked the
convoy in the early hours of 31 May 2010. The attack took place in international
waters, 72 nautical miles from the nearest coast and 64 nautical miles from the
so-called blockaded naval zone off the Gaza Strip.16 The Israeli soldiers were
heavily armed with machine guns, laser-guided rifles, stun grenades, tasers,

pistols and modified paintball rifles.’”"®'” The Isracli forces mounted a full-

'S For the coordinates of the area in international waters where the Mavi Marmara was attacked, see Annex 3
(Section 7)

'? For witness accounis of weepons deployed by Israeli military personnel, see Annex 5

"™ For video footage of Israeli soldiers during the attack, see Annex 7 {Clip 6 & 9)
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fledged military attack with frigates, helicopters, zodiac inflatable military boats
and submarines.”**'

The attack on the Mavi Marmara resulted in the death of nine passengers, of
whom eight were Turkish citizens and one was a US national of Turkish
descent.”? Moreover, several dozen civilians were injured in the attack, some
with serious bullet wounds and one still in a state of coma from which he is not
expected (o emerge.23 Other vessels in the convoy were not spared from the

premeditated military attack by Israeli forces, either.

i. Timeline of the attack
30 May 20610

22.00 - Israeli interference on the satellite communications of the Mavi

Marmara®, as it sails at a south-southwesterly bearing of 222°. 25,2627

22.30 - The Mavi Marmara receives the first communication from Israeli naval
forces, but no visual contact is established yet. The Isracli Navy demands the
ship “fo report the ship’s identity and destination”. Captain Mahmut Tural
responds by “identifying the ship, stating the number of passengers on board,
describing the humanitarian mission of the ship and notifying the port of

destination as Gaza”. The Israeli forces caution the Captain that a naval

" For the testimonies of Barig Oklay, Cengiz Kandilci, Ahmet Abdiilazizogullari, Dilaver Kutbuay, Michael
Curt, Alper Mutiu, Ekrem Cetin, Yagar Kutluay, Cenk Stiha Tathses, Abdullah Keskin, Fatma Kanlioglu, Halis
Akiner, Musa Uzer, Niliifer Oren, Garoglan Guruyev, Musa Ciftgi; Ersin Esen, Hakks Aygiin, see Annex 5
(Section 4)

 For video footage of lsraeli naval vessels used during the attack, seen Annex 7 (Clip 2,3 & 7)

2 For the testimanies of Yagar Kutluay, Ekrem Cetin, Cenk Sitha Tathses, Abdullah Keskin, Bang Oktay, Halis
Akingi, Musa Uzer, Nitiifer Oren, Garoglan Guruyev, Musa Ciftgi, [llas Yildiz, Ersin Esen, Mathias Gardell, and
Gene St. Onge, sec Annex 5 (Sections 4&5)

2 For autopsy reports of those killed in the atlack, see Annex 1

 For treatment repotis of those injured and trealed in Turkey, see Annex 2

“ For the testimony of Mr, Umit Sénmez see, Annex 3 (Section 1/v)

5 For the testimony of First Captain Mr. Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section 1/§)

% For the coordinates and position of the Mavi Marmara during its trip beginning from 29 May 2010, see the
Maps obtained from Undersecretariat for Maritime Affairs, see Annex 3 (Section 7)

# For the coordinates and posilion of the Mavi Marmara during its trip beginning from 29 May 2010, see the
Maps cbtained from Republic of Turkey Undersecretarial for Maritime Affairs, see Annex 3 (Section 7)
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blockade exists off the coast of the Gaza Strip and that, approaching an area of
hostilities, the ship should change course. The Captain insists that “the convoy is
in international waters and Israel cannot demand a vessel on the high seas to

change course.”

Other ships in the convoy receive similar calls from the Israeli navy. *** On
board Challenger-I, Israeli citizen Huwaida Arraf, begins answering the Israeli
Navy on behalf of the entire convoy, with the Captains® consent. Arraf
repeatedly states the illegality of Israel’s blockade, that they are unarmed
civilians carrying only humanitarian aid, not constituting any threat to Israel,
and that Israel should therefore refrain from using any violence against them.
Some passengers maintain that later Israeli communications contained
expletives.” Arraf reports that the Isracli Navy stopped communicating with her
at around 01.00-01.30.* In any event, no demand was ever made by the Israeli
forces to “stop, visit and search” the vessel. Fear spreads among passengers. On

the Mavi Marmara, passengers don their life jackets.”

23.30 - The vessel adopts a course at a bearing of 185° the final destination of
which would have been a point between Al-Arish and the Suez Canal; radar
spots the first Israeli naval craft about three or four miles away.>® Isracli
warnings continue in international waters, almost 100 nautical miles off the

shores of Israel.

* For the testimony of First Caplain Mr. Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section 1/i)
* rabbletv, 9 July 2010; Gaza Freedom Convoy: Faroog Burney's evewitness report (1/3).
ttp:/fwww. youtube com/watch?v=gAbm-QyWZzwd& feature=related (Accessed 6§ August 2010)
* For the lestimony of Huwaida Arraf, see Annex 5 (Section 5/x)
! For the testimonies of Cengiz Kandilci and Dilaver Kutluay, see Annex 5 (Scction 4)
"2 For the testimony of Huwaida Arraf, see Annex 5 (Section 5/x)
* For the testinony of Mr, Abdiilhamit Ateg, see Annex 5 (Section 5/x)
™ For the testimony of Captain Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section 1/i); for the coordinates and posilion of the
Mavi Marmara during its trip beginning from 29 May 2010, see the Maps obtained from Republic of Turkey
Undersecretariat for Maritime Affairs, see Annex 3 (Section 7)
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31 May 2010
02.00 - Lights from several craft sailing behind the convoy are spotted.” The
last Israeli communication calls, specifically addressed to the captain of the

. 3
Mavi Marmara, come to an end.”®

$2.00 - 04.30 - No further communications from the Israeli Navy. Pursuit by the

[sraeli craft continues.

04.080 - lIsraeli forces impose a total blackout on the vessels’ satellite

communication.” Panic among passengers sets in.

04.32 and onwards - Without any immediate prior warning, Israeli forces
launch a massive attack on the Mavi Marmara in international waters, at 32° 43"
North and 33° 31" East. Israeli forces, deployed in various categories of naval
vessels and helicopters, employ laser guided automatic rifles, stun and sound
grenades, tear gas canisters, as well as high powered paintball guns modified to
shoot a variety of projectiles. An initial attempt to board the Mavi Marmara
from zodiacs, employing fire, is unsuccessful. The first firing of shots which
thus took place causes the passengers to genuinely fear for their lives and repel
the boarding attempt. Israeli forces then open fire on the Mavi Marmara with
live ammunition from both zodiacs and helicopters, resulting in numerous
civilian casualties. Isracli commandos fast-rope down to the ship from
helicopters. Bloodshed continues after the descent of airborne Israeli
commandos. Even after white flags of surrender are raised and multi-lingual

announcements (o the same effect are made over the ship’s PA system, Israeli

* For the testimony of Muhammet Cihat Ulkl, see Annex 5 (Section 4/xxxii)
3 For the testimeny of Caplain Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section 1/i)
¥ For the testimony of Mr, Hilseyin Orug, sec Annex 3 (Section 1/vi)
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forces continue 1o use live ammunition. They also carry on shooting at already

. f v oers 18
wounded and incapacitated ctvilians. 2

As soon as the attack commences, the captain changes the vessel’s course to a
bearing of 270° heading West, in opposite direction to the Israeli coast,
increasing power to full speed. This change of course has been verified by the
Turkish Search and Rescue Center. Israeli frigates approach from the starboard

bow and close in, forcing the convoy to turn to the direction of Israel. **"'

Appr. 05.30 onwards - Isracli forces seize full control of the convoy and re-
route it on a bearing of 130° towards Ashdod. The vessels reach Ashdod around
noon. Throughout this period, Israeli forces commit numerous acts of brutality,

inhumane and degrading treatment and taunting against the civilian passengers.

ii. Accounts of witnesses of the Israeli attack on the Mavi Marmara
As corroborated by eyewitness accounts and supported by forensic data, Israeli
soldiers used excessive and indiscriminate force while and after boarding the

Mavi Marmara.

The Israeli zodiacs, warships and helicopters concentrated at first on the Mavi
Marmara. Witness accounts report sounds of machine guns coming from the
zodiacs as these approached the ship. At this stage, extensive use of tear gas,
stun and sound grenades is reported by numerous eye witnesses on board the

Mavi Marmara as well as the other vessels.*

* For various accounts that verify the timing and the conduct of the atlack, see Annex 5

* For a video footage of the moment of attack, see Annex 7{Clip 1)

*0 For the testimony of First Captain Mr. Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 {Section 1/i)

*1 See Annex 3 (Section 7) for the Maps and Date obtained from Turkish Repubiic Undersecrelarial for Maritime
Affairs.

! For various accounls, see Annex 5 (Sections 1, 3,4,5)
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There was also widespread use of paintball guns by soldiers on the zodiacs.
While Israel minimizes the impact of paintballs, these are military variants
specifically adapted for use in close quarter assaults by Special Forces. The
pellets contain not only ‘paint’ but are usually filled with compressed gases and
other chemical irritants to debilitate human targets. They are intended to sting
sharply and shock the recipient, so as to give assailants the initiative.” Reports
were given that the Israeli soldiers used the largest size pellets to inflict the
greatest injury. Evidence further shows the magnitude of actual injuries received

from paintballs.**

Once the passengers saw the hostile approach of the Israeli forces, they panicked
and, in fear for their lives, attempted to dissuade the Israeli soldiers in the
. zodiacs from boarding, by throwing plastic botties, waste bins and boxes, by
swinging chains and by spraying jets of water.” Many passengers expressed

their belief and fear that, once on board, the Israeli soldiers would kill them.*

Following the failure of the boarding attempt from zodiacs, helicopters appeared
on the scene. Eyewitness accounts converge on the fact that, at this stage, Israeli
forces began firing live ammunition onto the Mavi Marmara from helicopters
and zodiacs.”” For example, news producer Jamal Elshayyal saw live fire from
the helicopter before the first Israeli soldier descended and said that one of the
passengers Killed was clearly shot from above.”® Another journalist, the Spaniard

Manuel Tapial recounts that “real bullets started being shot from the zodiac

* Counterfeet, Israel vs, Turkey — Hanin Zoabi UNCENSORED, Yecutube, 1 June 20310
<http:/fwww.youtube. com/fwatch?v=ZkFnNnss490& feature=related> (27 July 2010)

*“ Far the testimony of Doctor Hasan Hiiseyin Uysal, see Annex 5 (Section 1/x)

* For a video footage of the moment of atfack, see Annex 7 {(Clip 1)

 For the testimony of Elif Akkus, see Annex 5 (Section /ix)

*7 Far a sample, see the testimonies of Kenneth O°Keefe, Anne de Jong and Mehmet Ali Zeybek, see Annex §

(Section 3/xvi & xii and Section 1/xii)

* Jamal Elshayyal, “Kidnapped by Israel, forsaken by Britain,” The Middle East Blog, 6 June 2010

<htip://blogs.aljazeera.net/middle-east/2010/06/06/kidnapped-isracl-forsaken-britain> (27 August 2010}
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boats and helicopters that appeared above the ship, and thus the first injuries
prior to their boarding the ship occurred”.”” Mattias Gardell testified that

“before the first Israeli soldier came on board, two passengers were shot dead

50 while Aydan Bekar recollected how “without landing on

from the helicopter
the ship, they started to shoot with guns, using real bullets. Several friends were
shot and fell down. ”. Elshayyal also recalled that soldiers-pointed their guns
down through some sort of hatch in the helicopter and fired live ammunition
indiscriminately®’. Kuwaiti MP Waleed Al-Tabtabaei said that it was the killing
of two unarmed Turkish men which provoked the resistance against the first
three soldiers rappelling onto the vessel, while Kuwaiti lawyer Mubarak Al-
Mutawa said that the soldiers opened fire from above without giving any
warning, killing a number of volunteers before even boarding the ship.** A
video footage taken during the attack that shows red-laser beams from rifles

being directed from above supports these accounts.

The Turkish Commission of Inquiry, which thoroughily inspected the Mavi
Marmara, encountered bullet marks that were clearly the result of fire from
above.*® Forensic evidence also incontrovertibly established that a significant
number of bullets penetrated victims’ bodies from above. It is therefore not
surprising that the UN Human Rights Council International lndependent Fact
Finding Mission “concluded that live ammunition was used from the helicopter

onto the top deck prior the descent of the soldiers ">’

* For the testimony of Manuel Espinar Tapial, see Annex 5 (Section 5/xiii)

* For the testimony of Mattias Gardell, see Annex 5 (Section 5/xvi)

*! Far the testimony of Aydan Bekar, see Annex 5 (Section 4\x)

* Jamal Elshayyal, “Kidnapped by Israel, forsaken by Britain,” The Middle Easi Blog, 6 June 2010
<htip://blogs.aljazeera.net/middle-east/2010/06/06/kidnapped-israet-forsaken-britain> (27 August 2010)
3 Abdullah Al-Qattan, “Gaza heroes’ welcomed home", Kuwait Times, 3 June 2010

<hitp;/fwww kuwaittimes.net/read_news.php?newsid=NDpdMzQ10TYy> (8 June 2010)

™ For the teslimony of Mehmet Ali Zeybek see Annex 5 (Section 1/xii)

* For the said video footage, see Annex 7 {Clip 9)

% For the relevant photos, see Annex 6 (Section 1)

7 UN Document A/HRC/15/21, Annex 8, paragraph 114
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The UN Fact Finding Mission, after its on-site inspection of the Mavi Marmara
and conducting interviews of witnesses found no evidence to suggest that any of
the passengers used firearms or that any firearms were taken on board the ship.
The Mission stated in its report that, despite requests, it had not received any
medical records or other substantiated information from the Israeli authorities
regarding any firearm injuries sustained by soldiers participating in the raid.*®
Moreover, the doctors who examined the three soldiers taken below decks did

not notice any firearm injuries.>”

Once having landed on the upper deck of the Mavi Marmara, the Israeli soldiers
began what can only be called a shooting spree. Ahmad Lugman Talib, who was
already wounded from gunfire apparently from the helicopters, says ;‘soldiers
were very aggressive and intentionally kicked and stepped on me, especially on
my wounded leg”.60 Ryad Bustanji recounts how armed soldiers rappelled from
the helicopter “began firing at the people before them... one of the Israeli
soldiers shot at me from nearby with a rubber bullet that landed above my ear...

n 61

1 fell to the ground... This was followed by three more bullets to my back.”.

Halis Akinci describes those moments with the following: “The Israeli soldiers

ruthlessly sprayed their bullets at us. They were shooting as if in a battlefield.
Some of them were throwing bombs to the lower decks. 1 got two gunshot
wounds ... They were livid...They started shooting at people lying motionless on
' the floor...They were kicking and hitting with their rifle-butts those wounded
i who called for medical attention... "> Medet Kan testified that “Two Israeli
soldiers appeared in the area in front the bridge. They started shooting at
us...They were shooting at everyone made visible by projector lights. When

Fatih Kavaktan attempied to throw a teargas canister overboard, he was

 See paragraph 116 of Lthe Report of the Fact Finding Mission, Annex 8

* For the testimony of Docior Hasan Hiiseyin Uysal, see Annex 5 {Section 1/x)
* For the testimeny of Ahmed Lugman Mutlalib, see Annex 5 (Section 5/iii)

8! For the testimany of Ryad Bustanji, see Annex'5 (Section 5/zv)

“ For the testimony of Halis Akincy, see Annex 5 (Section 4/xxv)
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sprayed with bullets coming from above. Hit by four bullets, he was heavily
injured. . Abduliah Ozkaya, on board Gazze-I, recounts how he was shocked
when he looked at the Mavi Marmara with his binoculars: “They were shooting
at people.”.** One last recount about this stage of the attack calling for mention
is by Ayetullah Tekin, who claims “I was shot in my abdomen, in the lefi side,
with a bullet. I was first shot with a real bullet. But, I and the other wounded
were shot one after the other with rounds of plastic bullets. I think they did this
to claim later that they first fired rubber bullets, and then resorted to using live
ammunition.”.® There were several reports of Israeli soldiers beating people
with batons. Moroccan MP Abdelqader Amara said that the soldiers hit victims
with their rifle butts before shooting them dead.®® Video footage shows Israeli
soldiers beating and shooting at point blank an unidentified passenger
(apparently the 19-year-old Furkan Dogan) who was clearly lying on the deck.®’
Rifat Audeh was thrown onto the lower deck by four Israeli soldiers, blindfolded
and had his hands tied behind his back while a soldier’s knee was digging in his

ribs.*®

Once having boarded, the soldiers also began firing towards the lower decks
with indiscriminate as well as targeted shooting at everyone who was visible.®
One man was shot in the leg just in front of Kevin Ovenden and another man

immediately to his right was shot in the abdomen. He said that the shots came

“ For the testimony of Medet Kan, see Annex 5 (Section 4/xxix)

* For the testimany of Abdullah (izkays, see Annex 5 (Section 4/iil)

% For the testimony of Ayetullah Tekin, see Annex 5 (Section 4/xi)

% Abdullah Al-Qattan, Gaza heroes welcomed home, The Kuwait Times, 3 June 2010

<http:/ffwwy kuwaittimes.net/read_news,php?newsid=NDgOMzOQ10TYy> (8 June 2010}

%7 For the said video footage, see Annex 7 (Clip 4)

% Rifat Audeh, lsraeli terror then and now: Rifat Audeh experienced first-hand what the sailors on the US
warship experienced 43 years ago, Uruknet.info, 10 July 2010 <http://www.uruknet.info/?p=67783> (27 August
2010)

* Mavi Marmara attack: Exclusive first interview with Gaza Convoy activist Kevin Neish”, Rabble.ca, 3 Jun
2010 < hitp://rabble.ca/podcasts/shows/rabble-radio/2010/05/106-interview-gaza-peace-activist-kevin-neish>
(27 Aupust 2010}
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from above, and that the victims could not have posed any threat to the
shooter.” Kevin Neish witnessed about 20 dead or wounded aid workers being
carried towards the ship’s stairway. Two of these bodies had twin bullet holes in

the sides of their heads, appearing to have been shot in execution style killing.”’

The bridge was taken over when ten Isracli soldiers, who tried to shatter the
windows without success, gunned down the door and rushed in with guns ready
and aimed to shoot. All the crew members were made to lie down on the floor
littered with shards of glass, and handcuffed. Some of those lying were stomped

upon.” All documents including the ship’s certificates were seized.”

A very large number of testimonies all state that Israeli soldiers continued with
their deadly shooting even after white flags were flown by a number of the
passengers and a multi-lingual surrender announcement was made over the

ship’s loudspeakers.”

iii. Fatalities

Turkish autopsy reports concluded that five of the deceased were shot in the
head at close range, as detailed in Annex 1. The said reports also indicate that
residues around the wounds had been deliberately cleansed prior to their
repatriation to Turkey for the purpose of suppression of ballistic evidence. The

following passengers lost their lives:

™ Mavi Marmara Report: Ovenden, Doares and the Vile Zionists, Youtube, 21 June 2010

< http:/fwww.youtube.com/watch?v=d3q1 CVS3D6o> (18 July 2010}

"' Mavi Marmara attack: Exclusive first interview with Gaza Convoy activist Kevin Neish”, Rabble.ca, 3 Jun
2010 < http://rabble.ca/podeasts/shows/rabble-radie/2010/05/106-interview-gaza-peace-activisi-kevin-neish>
{27 August 2010}

72 For the testimony of Ali Meri Sahin, see Amnex 5 (Section 4/v)

" For the testimony of First Captain Mahmut Tural, see Annex 5 (Section 1/i)

™ For the testimonies of Niliifer Oren, Al Yunusoplu, Ali Sahin Ozdemir, Medet Kan, see Annex 5 (Section 4)
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- Furkan Dogan received five gunshot wounds in the back of his head, nose,
left leg, left ankle and in the back, all from close range. A citizen of the
United States, Mr. Dogan was a 19-year-old high school student with
ambitions of becoming a medical doctor.”>’® Mr. Dogan’s motionless,
wounded body was kicked and shot upon, execution-style by two Israeli
soldiers.”’

- Cengiz Akyiiz received four gunshot wounds, in the back of his head,
right side of his face, the back and the left leg.”® Mr. Akyiiz was married
and a 41-year-old father of three.

- Ali Haydar Bengi received a total of six gunshot wounds, in the left side
of his chest, belly, right arm, right leg and twice in the left hand. Mr.
Bengi was married, a 39-year-old father of four.”

- Ibrahim Bilgen received four gunshot wounds, in the right temple, right
chest, right hip and back.”® Mr. Bilgen was married, 61-year-old father of
six, who worked as an electrical engineer.

- Cevdet Kiliglar, a photographer, was killed by a single distant shot to the
middle of the forehead.”’ He was shot most probably with a laser-pointer
rifle.®* Mr. Kiliglar was married, 38-year-old father of two.

- Cengiz Songiir was killed by a single gunshot wound in the front of the
neck.® He was a 47-year-old textile worker, married and the father of

sgven.

s Roger Cohen, The Forgotten American, 26 July 2010, The New York Times,
<htlp:/fwww.nylimes.com/2010/07/27/opinion/27iht-edcohen.html?_r=2> (19 January 201 1)

™ For Furkan Dofan’s autopsy réport, see Annex 1 (Section 7)

™ For the testimonies of Ekrem Sezer and Muharrem Giines, see Annex 5 (Section 4/viii and xxxiv
respectively); for the related video footage, see Annex 7 (Clip 4)

™ For Cengiz Akyliz's autopsy report, see Annex { (Section 2)

" For Ali Haydar Bengi's autopsy report, see Annex { {Section 1)

% Por Ibrahim Bilgen’s autopsy report, see Annex 1(Section 8)

8 For Cevdet Kiiglar’s autopsy report, sce Annex 1 (Section 4)

¥ Tor the testimonies of Erol Crtir Barg Oktay, Musa Uzer, see Annex 5 (Section3/ii, Section 4/xxxvi}
** For Cengiz Songiir’s autopsy report, see Anpex | (Section 3)
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- Necdet Yildirim received two gunshot wounds in the right shoulder and
left back.* He was 32-years-old, married, father of one.

- (etin Topguogiu was killed by three gunshot wounds in the back of the
head, the hip and the belly.3> He was 54-years old, married and a father of
one.

- Fahri Yaldiz was killed by four gunshot wounds: left chest, left leg and
twice in the right leg.*® He was 43 years-old, married and father of four,

and worked as a fire-fighter.

At least one witness claims that Mr. Topguoglu and Mr. Yaldiz were shot upon

and killed after the passengers had waved the white flag of surrender.”’

Numerous testimonies also indicate that at least three of the deaths occurred
because Israeli soldiers denied timely medical attention to the wounded.®
Siimeyye Ertekin and Halis Akinci testified that the Israeli soldiers hit those
doctors trying to help the wounded with the butts of their rifles.” Edda Manga
says “They did not allow the medics to treat the people, the doctors and nurses

were forced at gunpoint fo leave the wounded.”.”

Ali Buhamd’s testimony contains a grim mixture of some of the points made
above: “I saw a soldier shooting a wounded Turk in the head There was

another Turk asking for help, but he bled to death.” !

# For Necdet Yildinim®s autopsy report, see Annex 1{Section 9)

 For Cetin Topguoglu’s autopsy report, see Annex 1 (Section 5)

# For Fahri Yildiz's autopsy repott, sce Annex 1 (Section 6)

7 For the testimony of Salim Seyyar, sec Annex 5 (Section 4/xli)

® See for example the testimonies of Kevin Neish and Jamal Al-Shayyal, see Annex 5 (Section 5/xii & xvii)

* For the testimonies of Siimeyye Ertekin and Halis Akinc:, see Annex 5 (Scction 4/xlifi and xxv respectively)
" For the testimony of Edda Manga, ses Annex 5 {Section 5/xiv}

! ysraeli attack written into history with chilling survivor accounts, Today’s Zaman, 5 June 2010, <
hitp:/fwww.todayszaman.com/newsDetail_getNewsByld.action;jsessionid=05CA12501D73BA0358BBD61 F9B
3FAASETnewsld=212265 > (15 January 2011)
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iv. Injuries caused by gunshots

The Israeli soldiers’ widespread indiscriminate shooting also wounded over 50

of the Mavi Marmara’s passengers:

- Ugur Silleyman Soylemez has been in a coma ever since the attack as a
result of the wounds he sustained.”

- Abdiithamit Ates reported that he collapsed on the deck upon being shot
in the knee. Soldiers hit him in the forehead and his right eye, then turned
him over and shot him with a plastic bullet in the chest. He barely
survived.”

- Muharrem Giines was lying on the deck when soldiers wielding laser-
guided rifles approached him and shot him at close range in the left cheek.
The bullet exited through his lower right jaw.**”

- Mustafa Batirhan was shot in the lower abdomen from a range of about
one meter.”®

- Sadreddin Furkan, who was in the control centre on the bridge at the time,
said that the soldiers were shooting in all directions, and that he felt a

| strong pain in his leg which began bleeding. He was shot from behind,
three times in the leg and once in the foot.”

- Osman Calik was shot in the knee.”

- Alper Mutlu was wounded by fire coming from above, the bullet entering
his body at the level of his kidney and coming out of his leg.”

- - Musa Cifigi was shot upon from behind and wounded by an Israeli soldier

as he was trying to help wounded passengers.'®

2 For the treatment report of Ugur Silleyman Séylemez, see Annex 2 (Section 24)
*Eor the testimony of Abdiilhamit Ates, see Annex 5 (Section 1/xi).

* For the interview of Muharrem Giines, see Annex 7 (Clip 27)

* For Muharrem Giines’s medical report, see Annex 2 (Section 13)

* For Mustafa Batirhan’s medical report, see Anpex 2 (Section 6)

# For Sadreddin Furkan’s medical report, see Annex 2 {Section [ 1)

" For Osman Cahik's medical report, see Annex 2 (Section 10)

 For the testimony of Alper Mutiu, see Annex 5 (Section 4/viii)
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- Erkan Bavfidan says he was shot and injured by the very soldier he was
trying to photograph.'® Unlike his colleague Cevdet Kiliglar, who was

shot upon under identical circumstances, he survived.

The above are just a few examples selected to illustrate the frenzied atmosphere
aboard the Mavi Marmara during the Israeli attack. The magnitude and nature of
the force used by Israeli soldiers has been depicted as follows in the report of the
UN Human Rights Council Fact Finding Mission: “a large number of injured
passengers received wounds to critical areas of the body containing vital organs
[-..]. Furthermore, a number of passengers who were clearly not engaged in any
activities to resist the boarding by the Israeli forces, including a number of
journalists and persons who had been sheltering from the fire, received injuries,
including fatal injuries. It is apparent that no effort was made to minimize
injuries at certain stages of the operation and that the use of live fire was done
in an extensive and arbitrary manner. It is difficult not to conclude that once the
order to use live fire had been given, no one was safe. Under the circumstances,
it seems a matter of pure chance that there were not more fatalities as a

result. .

Israeli soldiers’ prevention of timely first aid to the injured was mentioned

earlier as a cause for a number of fatalities. It should not go unmentioned that

when the captain asked an Israeli officer several times for medical assistance for
the wounded, the response he got was: “I don’t care how many dead people you
[will] have, now alter your course fo Ashdod”.'” Once the soldiers took full

contro! of the ship, Dr. Hasan Hiiseyin Uysal, who had treated the lightly

'™ For the testimany of Musa Cifigi, see Annex 5 (Sectiond/xxxv)

" Far the testimony of Erkan Bayfidan, see Annex 5 (Section 4/xix}; see Annex 2 (Section 7) for his medical
treatment reporl and photos at the hospital.

12 See paragraph 169 of the Report of the Fact Finding Mission, Annex 8

D For the testimonies of Captain Mahmut Tural and Ali Mert Sahin, see Annex 5 (Section 1/i & Section 4/v)
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wounded Israeli soldiers, was handcuffed tightly and made to kneel for three

hours like the rest of the passengers.'®

v, Attacks on the other ships

The brutal and tragic nature of the Isracli attack on the Mavi Marmara has
avershadowed the raid on the remaining ships that were part of the humanitarian
aid convoy. Contrary to repeated claims by Israel that the remaining ships were
boarded peacefully, Israeli soldiers used force on the other vessels as well, and

subjected their passengers to violent treatment.

The Sfendoni was sailing about 300-400 meters astern of the Mavi Marmara.
The two ships were attacked simultaneously from zodiacs on either side.'” The
Captain disabled the engines and stopped the ship.w‘S About 15 to 20 masked
Isracli soldiers boarded the vessel and resorted to violence against the

passengers who were engaged in passive resistance.'?’

Eyewitness reports are as follows:

- Bilal Abdulazziz witnessed soldiers using stun grenades and batons
against activists who were merely locking arms. He was tasered in the
head, legs and back. He also witnessed elderly people being beaten.'%

- Dimitris Gielalis saw Israeli soldiers using plastic bullets and tasers andr

beating people.'” He witnessed a cameraman getting hit in the eye with a

rifle butt.'"®

1% For the written deposition of Doctor Hasan Hilseyin Uysal, whers he also describes how he attended 1o the
wounded Israeli soldiers, see Annex 5 (Section 1/x)

"5 See paragraph 143 of the Report of the Fact Finding Mission, Annex 8

1% TrishMaryHill, Dr Hasan Nowrah Convoy Massacre Survivar Clip of 1/3, YouTube, 10 fune 2010,
<http://www.youtube,com/watch?v=BNfql2 Pl.xk&fealure=related> (9 July 2010)

W7 Mikaet Stengérd and Josefine Hikerberg, Teologen Ulf Carmesund tillbaka fran lsrael, Aftonbladet, 2 June
2010 <http://www.aftonbladel.se/nyheter/article7231718.ab> (7 July 2010)

"% Adycousins, Gaza Flotilla Testimony of Bilal Abdulazzix, YouTube, 9 June 2010.

<hltp://www.youlube comiwaich?v=1FIh%1 mChkE& feature=related= (1 July 2010)
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- Al Mahdi Alharati was hit with rubber bullets in the leg, beaten in the
groin and over the head, hit with the back of a gun in the eye and hit with
the butt of a machine gun on the back of the head.!""*!

- Gene St. Onge was kicked and hit with a ‘rifle or something’ suffering a
gash on his head. He was then restrained with handcuffs. He said their
captain, who was pulled and hit, sustained a punctured eardrum along
with neck and back injuries.'”

- Yousser Benderbal said that the Captain’s ear was torn and that he
suffered injuries to his neck and leg.'™

- Retired US Ambassador, the octogenarian Edward Peck said that as a
result of the non-violent resistance outside the bridge, the Israeli soldiers
roughly treated some people. Some ended up needing crutches, bandages
and arm slings, and the Captain was in need of a neck brace.'”?

- Dr. Hasan Nowarah was hit by a rubber bullet. He saw Edward Peck
knocked down by an Israeli soldier, and the captain lying on the floor with
his face covered in blood and his arms full of cuts.’"®

- Television journalist Manolo Luppichini saw two people hurt by tasers.'"’

'™ Robert Booth et. al., Gaza convoy raid: We heard gunfire — then our ship turned into [ake of blood,
guardian.co.uk, 2 June 2010 <hitp:/fwww.gunardian.co.uk/world/2010/jun/02/gaza-flotilla-raid-gunfire-ship-
blood> (5 June 2010)

"0 Flena Becatoros and Suzan Fraser, Troops boarded and ship turned into a lake of blood, jndependentie, 2
June 2010 <http://www.independent.ic/national-news/troops-boarded-and-ship-turned-into-a-lake-of-blood-
2203364, himl> (5 July 2010}

"' Genevieve Carbery, Irish citizen ‘beaten’ by Israeli forces, theirishtimes.com, 9 June 2010
<http://www.irishLimes.com/newspaper/world/2010/0609/1224272122281.html> {12 June 2010}

"2 For the medical report of Almahdi Abdulhameed Alharati, see Annex 2 (Section 2)

" Testimony of Gene St. Onge, The Free Gaza Movement, 7 June 2010
<htip://www.freegaza.org/en/testimonies-from-israeli-jail/1221 -in-their-own-words-survivor-testimonies-from-
flotiila-31-may-2010> (27 August 2010)

11 «We were unarmed and didn't provoke anybody™ — aid convoy member, RT, 6 June 2010
<htip://rt.com/Top_News/2010-06-06/gaza-aid-convoy-eyewitness.himl> (5 July 2010}

Y% Interview with Edward Peck, Démocracy Now, War and Peace Report, 2 June 2000,
<http://www.democracynow.org/2010/6/2fisraeis_explanation_for_ deadly saza aid> (19 January 2011)

"8 For the lestimony of Hasan Nowarah, see Annex 5 (Section 5/if)

' Dimj Reider, lialian convoy journalist: My credit card was used after IDF confiscated il, Haaretz.com, 11
June 2010 <http://www. haaretz.com/print-edition/news/italian-flotilla-journalist-my-credit-card-was-used-after-
idf-confiscated-it-1.295493> (12 June 2010)
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- Manuel Zani recounted how the soldiers used tasers, truncheons, sound
bombs etc. against unarmed civilians. He reported the captain being

badly beaten with blood coming from his ear.'”

Once the Israeli raid on the Mavi Marmara began, Challenger-I attempted to flee

the scene and transmit reports about the attack to the outside world. This attempt

was unsuccessful because of the telecommunications blackout executed by the
Israeli forces. Moreover, the ship had to slow down due to loss of oil pressure in
its engines. Eyewitnesses on the ship said rubber bullets were fired before they

were boarded, and many passengers were hit.'"”

Witnesses recounted later that Israeli soldiers used stun grenades and high-
powered paintball guns, hit people with their rifle butts, pushed people onto the

deck and stomped on them.

- Fintan Lane had a gun pointed in his face. He genuinely feared for his life.

He saw Fiachra O Luain dragged around the deck.'

- Photographer Kate Geraghty was trying to take photographs when she

was tasered on the upper arm, which caused her to be thrown a meter and

a half and collapse vomiting on the deck.'”’
- Huwaida Arraf told CNN that her head was banged on the deck after she

was handcuffed and hooded.'® She said soldiers beat many passengers.'”

"™ For the testimony of Manuel Zani, see Annex 5 (Section 5/xviii)

" For the testimony of Anne de Jong, see Annex 5 (Section 1/xii)

' Shane Hickey and Anita Guidera, */ tried fo reason with them, but they attacked u